Public Document Pack

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2018
Time: 10.30 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members:  Christopher Hayward (Chairman)
Oliver Sells QC (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson
Deputy Keith Bottomley
Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark
Marianne Fredericks
Alderman Alison Gowman (Ex-Officio Member)
Alderman Gregory Jones QC
Paul Martinelli (Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Alastair Moss
Barbara Newman
Graham Packham

Enquiries: Joseph Anstee
tel. no.: 020 7332 1480
Joseph.Anstee@cityoflondon.gov.uk

N.B. Part of this meeting may be subject to audio-visual recording.

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1.00pm.

John Barradell
Town Clerk




AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 3 July
2018.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 8)

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 9 - 10)

BEECH STREET: TRANSPORT AND PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS
Report of the Director of the Built Environment

For Decision
(Pages 11 - 38)

TUDOR STREET/NEW BRIDGE STREET - UPDATE REPORT
Report of the Director of the Built Environment
(To be read in conjunction with the non-public appendix at Item 15)

For Decision
(Pages 39 - 50)

BANK ON SAFETY: FURTHER DETAIL ON THE ADDITIONAL FUNDS SOUGHT
Report of the Director of the Built Environment

For Information
(Pages 51 - 58)

ADOPTION OF THE CITY LIGHTING STRATEGY
Report of the Director of the Built Environment

For Information
(Pages 59 - 96)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DOCKLESS CYCLE HIRE REVIEW
Report of the Director of the Built Environment

For Information
(Pages 97 - 118)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION — That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:-

Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 119 - 120)

BANK ON SAFETY UNATTENDED ENFORCEMENT CAMERA CONTRACT
EXTENSION
Report of the Director of the Built Environment

For Decision
(Pages 121 - 128)

NON-PUBLIC APPENDIX - TUDOR STREET/NEW BRIDGE STREET
To be read in conjunction with the report at Item 6.

For Decision
(Pages 129 - 130)

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
SUB COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

STREETS AND WALKWAYS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION)
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 3 July 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing,
Guildhall on Tuesday, 3 July 2018 at 10.30 am

Present

Members:

Christopher Hayward (Chairman)
Oliver Sells QC (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson

Deputy Keith Bottomley

Marianne Fredericks

Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark
Deputy Alastair Moss

Graham Packham

Officers:

John Cater - Town Clerk’s Department
Olumayowa Obisesan - Chamberlain’s Department

Steve Presland - Department of the Built Environment
lain Simmons - Department of the Built Environment
Simon Glynn - Department of the Built Environment
lan Hughes - Department of the Built Environment
Sam Lee - Department of the Built Environment
Mark Lowman - City Surveyor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Paul Martinelli and Jeremy Simons.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
The following declarations were made:

ITEM 7: Graham Packham informed Members that he lived in the vicinity of
Bouverie Street

ITEM 7: Alastair Moss informed Members that his employers’ office was based
in the vicinity of Bouverie Street

ITEM 8: Randall Anderson informed Members that he lived in the vicinity of
Beech Street

Page 1



MINUTES

A Member reminded the Sub-Committee that the Cadent Gas presentation item
came after the outstanding references (ITEM 7), in the minutes is was
incorrectly listed at the beginning. The Committee clerk would amend the
minutes for the record.

RESOLVED - that (further to the point above) the Minutes of the previous
meeting held on 215t May 2018 be agreed as an accurate record.

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

Swan Pier

Members welcomed officers’ efforts to progress the flood defence wall work.
However, a member explained that the outstanding reference related to the
condition of the pier area and not the defence wall. The officer agreed to report
back on the tidying issue to the next meeting.

Post meeting note: the timeline for the flood defence wall work is as follows:

Tender Return (Late July 2018)

Authority to Start (assumed Chief Officer - Late August 2018)
Lead in (September 2018)

Start on site (September 2018)

Works complete (in two phases - February 2019)

22 Bishopsgate

Officers informed Members that the developer wanted to negotiate a deal
around reducing their contributions to the public realm improvement works.
Officers reaffirmed the Corporation’s position that they had to contribute the full
amount.

Dockless Bikes

Officers confirmed that a full report on Dockless bikes would be present to the
Sub-Committee in September. It was suggested that in finalising the report
officers draw on the experiences and lessons of cities across the world. There
should also be commentary on the possibilities of geofencing in mitigating
some of the challenges. A Member suggested that a London wide bylaw was
problematic as getting each of the councils to agree would take a long time.

ATTRO

Officers confirmed that the original ATTRO approval had been given via the
Planning and Transportation Committee, so the annual update Report should
continue through P&T (i.e. officers would take it out of S&W’s forward agenda
plan).

Open Spaces Committee representation

The Chairman noted that the Open Spaces Committee was still to confirm its
representative to the Streets & Walkways Sub Committee. This should be in
place by 16" July.

Page 2



2-6 CANNON STREET PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE1
The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of the Built Environment
concerning the public realm improvements at 2-6 Cannon Street.

A Member queried how the project was being funded, officers responded that it
would be fully funded by the developer.

A Member queried whether the on-site garden would be gated and locked at
night, and if so who controls the keys, officers responded that it would be
locked, and that the City would hold the keys.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee approved the following:

» Agreed that authorisation of Phases 2 and 3 be delegated to Chief Officer,
provided costs
are not exceeded.

* Authorised the delivery of public realm enhancement works in phases to meet
the
Developer’s revised programme.

» Authorised expenditure of £296,000 to implement works to Distaff Lane
(Phase 1) to meet

the Developer's revised work programme, to be fully funded from the 2-6
Cannon Street

Section S106 agreement contribution of £1,287,998 (inclusive of interest
accrued to date).

» Agreed the public realm enhancements including the proposed gate structure
at Distaff
lane, to be closed at night time.

BANK ON SAFETY - EXPERIMENTAL SAFETY SCHEME CONCLUSION
The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Director of Planning and
Transportation concerning the Bank on Safety scheme.

Members welcomed the Report and commended the work undertaken by
officers, the scheme was in direct response to the high level of fatalities and
serious injuries in the Bank junction and the trial had proved a success. The
Chairman noted that accidents had been reduced but explained that whilst
some data presented was firm more recent data was possibly subject to
change as explained in the report. This was because accidents may be
reported to the Metropolitan Police rather than City Police and delays in
transferring such information may occur. In addition, the public may report
accidents sometime after the event e.g. as a requirement of an insurance claim.
This was noted as disappointing but currently unavoidable.

Page 3



A Member queried whether the seriousness of accidents was going down due
to the removal of lorries at the junction, officers responded that the data set was
too small to be sure of an exact trend.

Members did note that the City of London’s polices own data indicated
significant improvements and a decrease in the incidence of accidents.

A Member expressed their delight and what had been a “phenomenal” success.
The City was experiencing an era of expansion in infrastructure, tourists and
the working population, it was right therefore to take a lead and get on with
delivering these projects — after Bank, officers should move on to mitigating the
problems at Ludgate Circus. Ultimately, the project was good for pedestrians,
mitigating air pollution, the bus network and the night time economy and was
worth it.

The Chairman reiterated his support, he confirmed that he had received a
100% positive reaction from local businesses.

A Member highlighted the difference between table 2 on page 37 (i.e. the
change in average taxi journey time and price) and table 3 on page 38 (i.e.
taxicard comparisons for journeys). Officers responded that the dataset in the
taxicard sample was anonymised, so it was impossible to tell where the journey
had started, whereas the taxi journeys had been exclusively within the City.

Members encouraged officers to return to the Sub-Committee in September
with a timeline for the next steps. Officers confirmed that, in addition to the Sub,
they would report into the Grand Committee with the timeline as well.

Members queried where the additional £36K (for the investigation proposed in
recommendation 2) was being sourced from, officers confirmed that the
proposal was that subject to Resource allocation sub Committees agreement,
this sum would come from the On-Street Parking Reserve.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee approved the following:
e To note the content of this report for information and make comment.

e To agree that if the experiment is approved to be made permanent,
officers be instructed to investigate additional measures to further
improve compliance, behaviour and performance within the vicinity of the
junction. (explained in paragraphs 80-84)

e Agree the addition of £36,000 to the budget for the investigation

proposed in
recommendation 2, above.

Page 4



TEMPLE AREA TRAFFIC STUDY - BOUVERIE STREET
Members received a Report of the Director of the Built Environment concerning
the Temple Area Traffic review for Bouverie Street.

The Deputy Chairman expressed his concerns that progress had been too
slow, in his view, the situation around Bouverie Street was unacceptable. He
pointed to the findings in the report that showed 70% of vehicles on Bouverie
Street were using it as a “rat run”, while it was estimated that there were (on
average) two illegal u-turns on the road into Tudor Street every hour. To avoid
implementing a workable system was simply a dereliction of duty on the part of
the Corporation.

The Deputy Chairman asked officers to confirm the location of the new
Courts/Police complex. Officers responded that it would be located between
Whitefriars Street and Salisbury Court.

A Member suggested that a piecemeal approach to this area with this should
be avoided, it was clear that the whole area around Bouverie Street had
challenges, both in terms of pollution and safety, and encouraged officers to
ensure that the wider picture should be kept in mind.

RESOLVED - Members agreed that option 2 should be pursued implemented
as “business as usual” (subject to no material objections being received as a
result of the statutory public consultation), using departmental local risk
budgets, but also resolved that requested officers return to the Sub-Committee
in September with a further examination of options 3 and 4 be examined further
as part of the wider Temple Area Traffic review.

BEECH STREET - TRANSPORT AND PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS
The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Director of the Built
Environment concerning transport and public realm improvements for Beech
Street.

The Sub-Committee noted the new dashboard cover sheet. A Member
emphasised that, in addition to the redevelopment of the Barbican Exhibition
Halls, the project mission statement should also include some commentary on
the aim to mitigate pollution. Furthermore, a Member suggested that, as a
matter of course, officers should always include some wording that linked
specific projects to the 5-year Corporate Plan. The Assistant Director
responded that the dashboard cover sheets were a new initiative and officers
were encountering teething problems, he hoped that given time to bed down
the new cover sheet would add value to Members and officers alike. The
Project Sub Committee would be discussing these teething issues later in July.

Members suggested that a fresh clarification from the Comptroller and City
Solicitor concerning the wider definition of pecuniary interests would be helpful,
given the impact of traffic scenarios for Beech Street are potentially so wide
that most Members across the City could be affected, i.e. beyond just the
Barbican area.

Page 5



10.

11.

12.

Members queried whether it would be more helpful to examine the cost and
duration of undertaking a Citywide detailed traffic model, a component of which
would be the Beech Street project, versus the cost and duration of undertaking
a detailed traffic model for only the area impacted by an Eastbound closure.
The benefit of a Citywide model would be that it could then be used for
subsequent projects and would reduce future costs. The key disadvantages
would be the immediate cost in terms of funding and time — an officer
suggested that a Citywide model would take three years to build.

The Chairman emphasised that there was an appetite to drive the project
forward, given the poor state of the Beech Street tunnel. Officers did caution
that the work to waterproof the upper deck of the tunnel could potentially slip to
2022.

Members concluded that officers should proceed with the work to establish the
strength of the sub-structure, in the meantime they proposed that the
substantive parts of the Report should be withdrawn and that officers should
return to the Sub-Committee after recess with a Report that examined the
options around commissioning either the limited Beech Street area traffic model
or the Citywide traffic model.

RESOLVED

« that the Sub-Committee approved officers to proceed with sub-structure study
at a cost of £80,000 (plus £10,000 staff costs)

« that officers should return to the next meeting of the Streets and Walkways
Sub-Committee with a Report exploring the options for a limited traffic model
versus a Citywide model

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
The Cadent (Gas mains replacement) paper was circulated by officers outlining
the upcoming major network activity.

Members expressed their concerns about the proposed closure of the
Blackfriars underpass and the Victoria Embankment for six months from April
next year. Officer suggested that this was Cadent planning for the worst-case
scenario. An update would be provided to Members in September.

A Member asked if extended hours had been approved during the early August
2018 six-week closure of Blackfriars Underpass/Victoria Embankment. Officers
would confirm as soon as possible.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

ALDGATE (PORTSOKEN) PAVILION

Page 6



The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of the Built Environment
concerning the Aldgate (Portsoken) Pavillion.

13. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE SUB COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED
There was one item of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 12.45 pm

Chairman

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



6 obed

Date Action Officer To be Notes/Progress to date
responsible completed/
progressed
to next
stage
Ongoing Action Swan Pier City Surveyor Ongoing The matter had now been referred to the City
25 July 2016 Swan Pier area is to be tidied up in Surveyor. Officers to update.
27 September 2016 conjunction with the delivery of the
Fishmongers Ramp project which
8 November 2016 is due for completion Summer The City Surveyor advised that consultant
6 December 2016 2016 engineers were currently preparing technical
14 February 2017 documentation for tenders to repair the flood
16 May 2017 defence wall, and this would be completed by
20 June 2017 ot February 2018.
24 July 2017
5 September 2017 The City Sur\_leyor reported th_at the fi_rst
17 October 2017 ?ender exercise had resulteq in very little
interest and a second exercise was
23 January 2018 scheduled for June.
27 February 2018
9 April 2018
3 July 2018
24 July 2017 22 Bishopsgate Director of the Ongoing Reference was made to servicing and
17 October 2017 The Sub-Committee considered an Built consolidation measures and officers agreed
23 January 2018 outline options appraisal report of Environment to report back on this.
27 February 2018 the Director of Built Environment
3 July 2018 concerning works to improve the Officers reported that a meeting had been
public realm areas and security in scheduled with relevant stakeholders to
and around the 22 Bishopsgate discuss security and public realm
development (formerly known as improvements and a report back was
‘The Pinnacle’). expected May 2018.
To receive any update.
23 January 2018 Dockless Bikes Director of the Meetings are being held with both cycle
27 February 2018 Built operators who currently have agreements to
9 April 2018 In response to a question Environment operate in the City.

7 Wal| epuaby




0T obed

3 July 2018

concerning the dumping of yellow
bikes in the City,

officers reported that as a dockless
cycle hire scheme could operate
with no

on-street infrastructure, companies
were able to operate their schemes
without

the express consent of the
Highway Authorities although bikes
deemed to be

causing an obstruction or nuisance
could be removed.

Officers agreed to speak to the
relevant operators and report back
to a future meeting.

Officers are further reviewing the legal
position in relation to obstruction and options
to remove bicycles left on City footways.

In addition, London Councils are exploring a
byelaw to enable operators to be licensed.

A further report on these matters is proposed
immediately following recess.

On Agenda

9 April 2018
3 July 2018

ATTRO

In response to a question
concerning the undertaking that
a full report back to the Sub-
Committee on the ATTRO would
be provided, officers agreed to
do this.

Director of the
Built
Environment

The original ATTRO approval went through
P&T Committee rather than S&W, so the
Year One Review report will now be going to
P&T Committee rather than S&W. (It will also
go to Police and P&R Committees.)

Report received by P&T on 26 July 2018




Agenda Iltem 5

Dashboard Coversheet

[1] Ownership

Unique Project Identifier: 10847 Report Date: July 2018
Core Project Name: Beech Street Transport and Public Realm
Improvements

Programme Affiliation: Beech Street Transformation
Project Manager: Kristian Turner
Next Gateway to be passed: G4

[2] Project Brief

Project Mission statement: To enable the Vision for Beech Street, it is
necessary to dramatically improve the public realm in Beech Street. To
achieve this first requires the removal of traffic from Beech Street. Definition
of need:
e The adopted 2015 Local Plan, policy CS5 supports the further
improvement of the Barbican area as a cultural quarter;
e The Barbican Area Strategy and Culture Mile Look and Feel Strategy
identifies the need for infrastructure improvements in Beech Street
Key measures of success:
1) Removing/reducing traffic from Beech Street
2) Vastimprovement to quality of the public realm
3) Enable the refurbishment of the Exhibition Halls
4) Air quality improvements (reduction in NOXx)

[3] Highlights

Finance:

Total anticipated cost to deliver [£]: £12M-£15M

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: additional
maintenance liabilities unknown until the design is complete and
approved

Programme Affiliation [£]: £30M (not including podium waterproofing)

Currently Spent/ New requests [£] | Variance [£]
Approved [£] Committed [£]

£218,927 £70,858 £1,624,837 £

Previous estimate New estimate to | Variance [£]
to complete all complete all

other works [£] n/a other works [£]

L£12M* L12M-£15M £0-£3M

* As reported by the Beech Street Transformation programme

Headline Financial changes:
Since ‘Project Proposal’ (G2) report:
A A Gateway 3 Issues Report in 2016 approved a budget of £120,525 for
the development of a feasibility study for Beech Street. The initial traffic

Page 11




modelling undertaken to date indicates that the proposals will have a
significant impact on traffic in the City and Islington. Therefore a revised
budget is required to undertake the necessary fraffic modelling to
achieve the necessary approvals from Transport for London and LB
Islington.

Since ‘Options Appraisal and Design’ (G3-4) report:

N/A

Since ‘Authority to start Work’ (G5) report:

N/A

Risk:

Risk: Reputational, public/stakeholder impact: There is a high risk for the
project and reputational risk for the delivery of Culture Mile if Beech Street
can't be delivered. One of the key objectives of the Beech Street Transport
and Public Realm project is the removal or reduction of traffic in Beech
Street, which will be a highly challenging endeavour. The City will require
the approval of TfL to close Beech Street due to the additional traffic this
will displace onto other streets, such as London Wall and Old Street. TfL and
LB Islington have other planned projects on Old Street which reduce fraffic
capacity.

There is likely to be vociferous opposition to a Beech Street closure from
transport operators and users.

Overall RAG rating: Red

Previous RAG rating: Amber

[4] Member Decisions and Delegated Authority

Members of Policy and Resources Committee approved the Vision for
Beech Street in an update report on 7th June 2018. This sets out the
principle that traffic needs to be removed or reduced in Beech Street as
part of the Transformation programme.

The only matter of Delegated Authority relates to the Director for Built
Environment being able to move funds between individual line items with
no change to the overall budget or project scope.

Members of the Port Health and Environmental Services Committee have
requested that the potential for air quality to be improved on Beech Street
by investigating the feasibility of restricting fraffic to Ultra Low Emission
vehicles.

[5] Narrative and change

Date and type of last report:

Gateway 3 Issues Report (January 2016)

Key headline updates and change since last report.

This report identifies that there are a number of different projects that make
up the Beech Street tfransformation programme. The initial fraffic modelling
that has been undertaken demonstrates that there are likely to be

Page 12




significant challenges to achieving the necessary approvals to remove
traffic fromm Beech Street. Members have requested that both an
eastbound and westbound traffic closure be investigated.

Headline Scope/Design changes, reasons why, impact of change:
Since ‘Options appraisal’ (G3) report:
Request to increase project scope to investigate improving air quality
with ULEV vehicles.
Requirement to ascertain the capacity of the sub surface structures.
The scope of traffic modelling required is now better understood, as are
the aspirations of TfL and LB Islington for projects in their area.

Timetable and Milestones:
Expected timeframe for the project delivery: 2023
Milestones:

1) TfL approve City TMA application for traffic changes
2) Public realm desigh completed

3) Highway works complete in time for Exhibition Halls
Are we on track for this stage of the project against the plan/major
milestones? Y
However, there are significant risks relating to fraffic which could
negatively impact on the programme
Are we on track for completing the project against the expected
timeframe for project delivery? Y

Risks and Issues
Top 3 risks:

Risk description | The subsurface structures do not have the capacity to
support a widened northern footway
Risk description | TfL do not approve the City's Traffic Management Act
application to remove/reduce traffic
Risk description | Vociferous opposition from single issue transport
groups

Top 3 issues realised [risks which have come to pass):

Issue Description Impact and action taken Realised Cost
Traffic modelling | The scope and complexity of the | £10,000
scope traffic modelling exceeds previous

experience in the City. An
independent  fraffic  modelling
expert will be procured to offer
impartial professional advice on
the procurement of a traffic
modelling team and engagement
with TfL.

Page 13




Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing? Yes, the Culture
Mile is an initiative that the City has released to the media, public and
neighbouring authorities.

Page 14




Committees: Dates:
Streets and  Walkways  Sub- | For Decision 04/09/2018
Committee

Policy and Resources For Decision 06/09/2018
Projects Sub-Committee For Decision 12/09/2018
Port Health & Environmental Services | For Information 25/09/2018
Subject: Issue Report: Public
Beech Street: Transport and Public Gateway 3

Realm Improvements Complex

Report of: For Decision
Director of the Built Environment

Report Author:

Kristian Turner

Dashboard

Timeline: G4 Detailed Option Appraisal ~ May 2021

Total Estimated Cost: £12M-£15M (for the transport, highway and public realm
elements on Beech Street only)

Approved budget: £218,927

Spend to Date: £70,858

Overall Project Risk: High

Report Summary

This report is for the Beech Street Transport and Public Realm project which aims to deliver
air quality, property and public realm improvements in Beech Street, which in turn can best
be achieved by the removal/reduction of traffic.

The key risks to delivering the project remain:
¢ the wider traffic impact of reducing traffic in Beech Street;
e attaining the necessary statutory approvals and agreement of Transport for
London (TfL) and neighbouring authorities;
¢ the potential conflict with nearby projects just outside the City boundary which
reduce traffic capacity on parallel streets and may cause displacement of vehicles
onto Beech Street.

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work done to date, to seek
Member endorsement of the development of two options for reducing traffic in Beech
Street, and to advise on the project risks.

A previous version of this report was bought to Members of the Streets and Walkways
Sub Committee in July 2018. Following discussions at that Committee, it was agreed to
withdraw the report and resubmit it with additional consideration given to:
- Developing further options for the reduction of traffic in Beech Street by
investigating both an eastbound and westbound closure, with a key objective being
the improvement of air quality;

Page 15




- That officers should consider the possibility of a City-wide traffic model to allow
Members to consider the cumulative traffic implications of future projects.

Since the July Committee, officers have met with TfL to understand the traffic implications
of the Old Street roundabout scheme and the issues surrounding a City-wide traffic
model, plus they have met with LB Islington regarding the Old Street / Clerkenwell Road
cycle grid route. This report provides an update on both those discussions, plus an
update on the structural investigation work at Beech Street.

Background

Vision & Governance

In June 2018 the Policy and Resources Committee agreed the vision to transform Beech

Street. It was to create a vibrant street with a high quality public realm at the centre of the
Culture Mile, improve air quality and provide the opportunity to realise property outcomes.

The programme for the delivery of the Beech Street vision, the Beech Street Major
Transformation programme, includes three individual projects: transport and public realm
improvements, property redevelopment, and podium waterproofing. These projects have
significant interdependences, but June’s Policy and Resources Committee also agreed
that they should be developed individually with their own specific budgets and milestones
through the Committee approvals process.

Air quality

Beech Street has recently been measured as one of the most polluted streets in London
for noxious emissions (NOx) from vehicles. The NOx data doesn’t differentiate between
westbound and eastbound traffic, but based on existing traffic flows and the queues
approaching Aldersgate St, it is reasonable to assume that westbound traffic contributes
60% or more. This will be a factor to consider when balancing the merits of an eastbound
closure versus a westbound closure.

The work undertaken in the Barbican area by the Low Emissions Neighbourhood (LEN)
project has identified air quality on Beech Street as a local concern for residents and
visitors, and a pilot scheme will be trialled on Moor Lane to restrict traffic to Ultra Low
Emission Vehicles (ULEV).

The Port Health and Environmental Services Committee has requested that the potential
for Ultra Low Emission Vehicle (ULEV) restrictions on Beech Street be investigated as
part of the traffic reduction options. It is therefore proposed that the scope of the project
be expanded to determine the feasibility of restricting some or all traffic on Beech Street
to ULEV vehicles only.

Progress to date — Transportation and Public Realm

Traffic Modelling — Beech Street traffic options

An initial Preliminary Traffic Analysis (using the strategic TfL 2018 ONE Model for Central
London) was produced in 2016 as part of a study to identify the geographical area that
would be affected by different options for the restriction or removal of traffic from Beech
Street. The options tested were:

Option 1 - An eastbound closure of Beech Street to vehicles;

Page 16




Option 2 - A westbound closure of Beech Street to vehicles;

Option 3 - A total closure of Beech Street in both directions (i.e. pedestrianisation
except for vehicular access to the Barbican Car Park, residential car parks and
servicing).

The areas affected by the reassignment of traffic are presented in Appendix 1. This
shows that all three scenarios would cause reassignment of traffic to other streets within
the City (particularly on London Wall and Moorgate), the TfL Network (Old Street) and the
streets of neighbouring boroughs.

In terms of scale of impact, an eastbound closure causes traffic to reassign over the
smallest area, and a full closure affects the widest area.

Given the scale of impact from a full closure, it is proposed that the project focusses on
Options 1 and 2 for now, with Option 3 (a full closure) remaining a longer-term aspiration.

City wide traffic model

At July’s Streets and Walkways Sub Committee, Members asked officers to consider the
merits of a City-wide traffic model to enable strategic decision making. It was suggested
this would be useful in understanding the traffic impacts of various aspirational schemes,
including Beech Street, Museum of London, Centre for Music, Bank and the Eastern City
Cluster.

Officers have since met with TfL’s transport modelling team to discuss options for this
approach. TfL are currently investigating the rollout of new software for a Central London
traffic model which allows more of the traffic modelling tasks to be undertaken in one
software package. Officers have been advised that using this approach will be the most
cost effective and efficient method for testing traffic scenarios from various schemes
together.

We have requested more information on how TfL’s model will be created, their
programme, funding, on-going maintenance costs and how the model might reduce the
time for getting traffic scheme approvals.

Public Realm

Beech Street was identified as a priority area for enhancement in the Barbican & Golden
Lane Area Strategy (approved in 2015), with an emphasis on reducing traffic levels and
improving conditions for pedestrians and cyclists.

The Culture Mile Look & Feel Strategy, which is due for adoption in October 2018,
identifies Beech Street as a critical section of the ‘cultural spine’, the main east-west route
through the Culture Mile area. The principles for the cultural spine include creating new
public space along the route, prioritising pedestrian movement, and making the area
easier and more pleasant to navigate. Specifically for Beech Street, the intention is to
create a unique and vibrant urban ‘destination’, with an enhanced street environment and
the potential for future pedestrianisation.

Initial design approaches for Beech Street have been considered, dependent on the
option(s) taken forward for further development. These opportunities include, but are not
limited to:

Page 17




e widened footways in enhanced materials;

e alterations to the junctions at either end of Beech Street, particularly at Aldersgate
Street;

e improved lighting, including the potential for architectural or curated lighting;

¢ the introduction of public art.

Property studies relevant to the highway

A significant amount of work has been done by the Culture Mile property team in
determining the business case for the refurbishment of property space along Beech
Street. Studies have looked at both the under-utilised space available on the north side in
Exhibition Halls 1 and 2 and on the south side by relocating car parking spaces and
utilising the refuse area.

It was found that the refurbishment of the Exhibition Halls is supported by the property
business case and that their revenue potential would be maximised by (significantly)
widening the footway on the northside and improving the public realm. On the south side,
it was determined that only substandard units could be physically achieved, and these
would not command sufficient levels of rent to justify the estimated cost. It has therefore
been established that retail space on the south side would not be economically viable.

Appendix 3 illustrates how shallow public display cases displaying artefacts from core
partners could still combine with new retail units in the vicinity of Lauderdale Tower to bring
variety to the long south frontage.

Footways and pedestrian comfort levels

The footways in Beech Street are quite narrow, around 2.5m wide on the north side and
1.5m on the south. However, pedestrian flows in Beech Street are relatively moderate
compared to some locations in the City, so that pedestrian comfort levels have been
calculated as very good at B+ and A- respectively.

Nevertheless, widening of each footway will be reviewed during the design process, with
the potential for reducing traffic to one direction allowing the opportunity to widen the
northern footway to compliment the property development and / or widen the southern
footway to improve pedestrian comfort.

Widening the footway on both sides would be more challenging because it would require
the “running” traffic lane to move towards the middle of the street, the removal of the
central reservation and changes to the road’s profile and drainage (see below).

Page 18




Existing

Future

5.0m 7.0m 3.0m

~ 4m of footway gained, both footways could be widened by removing central reservation, requires drainage,
structural, utility and carriageway works

Structural constraints

Since July’s Streets and Walkways Committee, the project team have undertaken
inspections and reviewed historic design and drainage drawings for Beech Street. Further
ground radar surveys and trial holes are programmed for late August and September
which will confirm whether the footway widening is achievable. Early indications are
positive as it's been determined that except for a small area at the southern end of
Golden Lane, the Ben Johnson House car park does not extend beneath the road.

Key Project Risks and Opportunities
The main project risks, challenges and opportunities are detailed below:

1. The condition and capacity of the various underground structures is now being
assessed because if they cannot accommodate the additional loads on the
surface, the footway widening would be restricted, which in turn would limit the
potential for the public realm improvements and property redevelopment.

2. The complexity of traffic modelling will be greater than either the Aldgate and Bank
on Safety projects, and potentially the largest traffic model ever built by the City.

3. TfL and LB Islington have aspirations to significantly change the Old Street
roundabout by reducing traffic capacity to transform the junction. In addition, LB

Page 19




Islington have aspirations to develop a new cycle route along Old Street /
Clerkenwell Road. The partial closure of Beech Street would reassign traffic to
these routes, so there is a risk that both TfL and LB Islington will object to changes
at Beech Street, significantly delaying or halting the Beech Street project.
However, we are now working with TfL and LB Islington to identify collaborative
opportunities to realise both sets of aspirations, with Culture Mile also providing
significant cross boundary benefit potential.

4. There is a risk that TfL, residents or businesses will object to changes to the Route
153 bus.

5. Experience from other recent schemes would suggest that the permanent closure
of any major street in the City will create a high risk of vocal, influential and
prolonged opposition from single issue transport groups.

6. Future projects, such as Centre for Music and Museum of London at West
Smithfield, will add an extra layer of complexity to the planning, management and
resilience of the street network in the next 10-15 years, with any changes to the
London Wall roundabout a future consideration for Beech Street.

7. The City’s emerging Transport Strategy will provide a framework for new initiatives
to actively manage traffic volumes in the City. This will be important given that
traffic reductions are likely to be needed to enable the delivery of various Culture
Mile projects, as well as other initiatives across the City.

8. Changes at Beech Street will require Traffic Management Act consent from TfL
who are currently undergoing a significant restructure. With new resource
constraints and the loss of key staff, it remains to be seen how TfL will respond,
but equally there are opportunities through the Mayor’s Transport Strategy Healthy
Streets initiative where the Beech Street project could receive a high degree of
GLA support.

Procurement

Work to procure the services of a transport consultancy to undertake the traffic modelling
(~£500K of services) will be undertaken with the assistance of the City Procurement
team. It is considered that only 2-3 consultancies in London have the necessary
experience and staff to undertake this complex work.

There are 3 options for the procurement of transportation and landscape design services:
Option A — Full OJEU tender

Time to tender ~ 6 months

Benefits — Full OJEU compliance

Disbenefits — Programme delay; cost of officer time in preparing, tendering and assessing
bids; risk of challenge if the value of the tender changes as the project progresses.

Option B — Utilise another public sector framework (i.e. TfL)
Time to tender ~2-3 months
Benefits — Compliant and faster than Option 1

Page 20




Disbenefit — The 2-3 consultancies we believe have the necessary skills are not on these
frameworks as they tend to be smaller and more specialised SME’s.

Option C — Utilise design services in the Riney Highway Term contract (preferred
method)

Time to tender ~1-2 months

Benefits — Compliant and immediately available, sufficient time on the Riney term
contract. Similar approach used in Westminster on their Highway Term contract
Disbenefits — Would be a large amount of fees to route through the Riney term contract.

Options A and C would be the routes most likely to result in procuring a consultant with
the necessary skills and experience. Given the pace required to meet the opening of the
redeveloped exhibition halls, DBE and City Procurement propose to use Option C.

(NB Structural services will be procured through the term contract for Structures and
Bridges as usual.)

Proposed next steps

To deliver the vision for Beech Street, the following tasks will be undertaken:

1. Continue to establish the physical constraints of the site, particularly the structures,
utilities and drainage below Beech Street.

2. Continued engagement with TfL and LB Islington at a strategic and operational
level and seek Traffic Management Act approval for the scheme from TfL.

3. Develop a detailed project plan and advise Members on the likely high level
political engagement required with neighbouring authorities and GLA/TfL.

4. Gather baseline information on air quality on Beech Street and the alternate
streets to help assess the impact of any traffic changes.

5. Begin to build a VISSIM micro-simulation model over a wide part of the City and
Islington to enable the impacts of the Beech Street proposals (Option’s 1 and 2) to
be fully quantified.

6. Develop the model with information from other authorities to capture their schemes
which also affect traffic.

7. Produce computer generated images of what a transformed Beech Street could
look like for use in stakeholder engagement and to help build momentum for the
project.

8. Once there is confidence that traffic can be removed or reduced in Beech St, have
a landscape architect produce a design for the street based on objectives
established by a new working party.

9. Co-ordinate the physical highway and public realm construction works with the
Exhibition Halls refurbishment as both programmes progress. This is dependent on

Page 21




the progress of the transportation work to reduce traffic in Beech Street which will
then define the feasibility and timing of a proposed ULEYV restriction in Beech
Street.

Forward Programme
Given the size and complexity of the project, an indicative programme is outlined below,
but this is reliant on significant third-party agreements.
The key dates are as follows:
e August 2018 — December 2018 Structural assessment and site surveys
completed
e October 2018 Scoping of modelling brief
¢ November 2018 Procurement of transport and public realm services (*dependent
on procurement option chosen)
e December 2018 — June 2021 Traffic model completed and accepted by TfL and
supported by LB Islington
e November 2019 — April 2021 Public realm and highway outline design completed
e July 2021 Gateway 4 Report
e August 2021 — October 2022 Detailed design completed (structures and
highways)
e December 2022 Gateway 5 Report
e January 2023 - January 2024 Highway construction
e Q1 2024 Highway works complete

Funding
The current expenditure on the project is £70,858 from an approved budget of £218,927,

leaving £148,069 to be utilised in developing the project to Gateway 4. However, a further
£1,526,435 is thought to be required to reach Gateway 4 (see summary below and
Appendix 4), and is proposed to be funded from DBE'’s Public Realm and Local Transport
Improvement CIL allocation.

Additional Funds Revised Budget to

Description QERIDES BUdget (£) Required (£) Gateway 4 (£)
Fees 112,636 680,000 792,636
Highways Staff Cost 5,000 64,280 69,280
P&T Staff Costs 82,889 782,155 865,044
DBE Structures Staff cost 18,402 0 18,402
TOTAL 218,927 1,526,435 1,745,362

The staff costs to reach Gateway 4 represent approximately 6% of the £15m scheme
estimate. These have been benchmarked against other transportation and public realm
schemes delivered by the City and have been found to be proportionate and appropriate
for a project of this complexity.

A full time Project Manager with a designated technical and support team will be required
to develop the project to deliver key tasks including procurement, traffic & pedestrian
modelling, consents & approvals, air quality monitoring, transport surveys, traffic design,
structural assessments, public realm lighting design, public & stakeholder engagement,
communications and consultation.

Page 22




Recommendations
It is recommended that all Committees note:

1. The vision for Beech Street as approved by the Policy and Resources Committee,
which includes the reduction of traffic, improvements to the public realm, widening
of footways and improvements in air quality;

2. The separation of the podium water-proofing, property redevelopment and
transportation & public realm projects, to follow individual Gateway paths and
reporting times;

3. The results of the traffic and public realm work done so far;

4. The key project risks, next steps & programme.

It is recommended that Members of the Streets and Walkways and Project Sub
Committees approve:

5. Further development of the feasibility of Option 1 (Beech Street closed to
eastbound traffic) and Option 2 (Beech Street closed to westbound traffic)

6. An increase in the scope of the project (requested by the Port Health &
Environmental Services Committee) to investigate the feasibility of introducing
Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle restrictions in Beech Street

7. The proposed procurement route for consultancy services utilising the City’s
Highways Term Contract;

It is recommended that Members of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee and
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee approve:

8. Anincrease in the estimated project budget of £1,526,435, to £1,745,362 to fund
the project to Gateway 4, subject to the procurement of the relevant consultancy
appointments;

9. The allocation of Public Realm and Local Transport Improvement CIL funds to fund
the development of the project to Gateway 4;

10. Delegate authority for any adjustments between elements of the budget to the
Director of the Built Environment in conjunction with the Chamberlain’s Head of
Finance provided the total approved budget of £1,745,362 (subject to
procurement) is not exceeded and the scope remains unchanged.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Traffic Modelling — areas of impact
Appendix 2 Beech Street closure — traffic survey analysis
Appendix 3 Beech Street southside visualisations
Appendix 4 Expenditure to date
Appendix 5 Total Additional funds to reach Gateway 4
Contact
Report Author Kristian Turner
Email Address Kristian.turner@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number | 020 7332 1745

Page 23




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Appendix 1 - Traffic Modelling Areas of Impact

~1 !

- ~

e br—flihpan.m_% !

Pau'a Walk I s
J

Westbound Closure

Page 25



Page 26



ey BRIEFING NOTE
Lowbon

Appendix 2

City Transportation Briefing note on traffic during Beech Street closure

Date: 31/05/18

Summary

In March 2018, Beech Street was closed for 5 days for the “Tunnel Visions Array” sound and
light event. This was used as an opportunity to undertake traffic surveys on the key junctions
on the alternative routes to the north and south of Beech Street. These surveys were then
compared to a “normal” day when Beech Street was open as usual. In summary the key
findings are that:
= the traffic signals in the area operate at full capacity in the AM peak;
» traffic diverts around Beech Street primarily via London Wall and Old Street;
» With adjoining junctions such as Moorgate / London Wall already operating at full
capacity, the additional traffic causes traffic queues to increase;
= Overall, there is an average 23% increase in journey times on the routes to the south
and north of Beech Street;
= On some arms of junctions, (such as Aldersgate Street northbound at Beech Street
junction) journey times increase by over 100% (i.e. from 34 seconds to 73 seconds.

The above simply presents the analysed data of the traffic surveyed during a closure with no

other traffic management interventions. Despite requests for information, we do not know if
TfL altered traffic signal timings on the days of closure.

Methodology

1. Observations by Network Management team of a significantly busier network with
Beech Street closed
2. Hourly snapshots of the network via the TomTom website between 9am and 6pm
3. 20-30 cameras installed at 7 sites (junctions) that were anticipated to experience
additional traffic due to the Beech Street closure
4. Thursday 15" March main survey day, Thursday 22nd March the comparison
(baseline) day
5. Data captured
* journey times
= traffic volumes
= queue lengths

Observations

6. Visual observations that significantly more traffic on London Wall and Moorgate

7. Hour snaps of TomTom surveys, significantly elevated levels of congestion on
London Wall, Moorgate, City Road, Goswell Road, Bunhill Row and Old Street, in the
AM and midday period, less so after 2pm

Page 27



BRIEFING NOTE

LONDON

Traffic analysis:

8. Traffic volumes summary

= Traffic flows are total flows across the AM peak only. As expected, there is little
overall difference in traffic volumes however vehicles spent almost 23% more time
queuing than in normal network operation in the AM Peak. This tells us that the
surveyed junctions cannot operate at an increased capacity to accommodate the
reassigned traffic, which generally manifests itself in additional traffic queues.

= The vast majority of traffic diverting around Beech Street use either Old Street or
London Wall.

» This note analyses the impact of the closure at four levels: the City Level, the
Junction Level, the Junction Arm Level and the Traffic Lane Level.

Table 1: change to vehicle volumes and average Queue time at the City level in the

AM Peak
Thursday 22nd | Thursday % difference
(Baseline) 15th between closure
(Closure) and baseline
Number of vehicles 12,360 12,136 -2%
Total Queuing time (hours, minutes and 04:54:01 06:02:49 +23%
seconds)

9. Traffic journey times summary

* Increased journey times have been measured to understand the level of congestion
on the network.

= As can be seen in the table below, as anticipated there is a significant increase to the
average journey time at key junctions on the alternative route.

Table 2: change to vehicle volumes and average Queue time at the junction level in the AM

Peak

Junction Total vehicles Total vehicles % change to Average Queue Average Queue % change

(Baseline) (Closure) vehicle volumes JT (Baseline) JT (Closure) to Queue
JT

Beech Street / 2132 1757 -18% 00:30 00:34 +13%

Aldersgate Street

London Wall / Wood 1369 1477 +8% 00:35 00:37 +7%

Street

Moorgate / 1793 1866 +4% 00:44 00:58 +33%

Ropemaker Street

Moorgate / London 2134 2170 +2% 01:00 01:03 +6%

Wall

Old Street / Goswell 2700 2482 -8% 01:00 01:17 +29%

Road

Rotunda 2040 2039 0% No Survey No Survey No Survey

Page 28



LONDON

BRIEFING NOTE

Whitecross Street / 192 345

Fortune Street

+80%

No Survey

No Survey

No Survey

» Looking at the average delays for the junction as a whole masks the effects on some

arms where the experience for vehicles is much worse, for instance it is clear there
has been a change to the average queue time at the Old Street / Goswell Road

Junction.

= Table 3 below shows which arms are most affected by the closure.

Table 3: Change to average queue times by Junction Arm Level in the AM peak only

%
Junction Arm Baseline Closure Difference | difference
Old Street / Goswell Road WB 00:01:10 | 00:02:32 116%
Moorgate / South Place EB 00:02:11 | 00:03:22 00:01:11 54%
Old Street / Goswell Road EB 00:00:53 | 00:01:53 00:01:00 114%
London Wall / Moorgate SB 00:01:23 | 00:02:06 00:00:43 51%
Beech Street / Aldersgate NB 00:00:34 | 00:01:13 00:00:39 113%
Beech Street / Aldersgate SB 00:01:23 | 00:01:46 00:00:22 27%
London Wall / Wood Street WB 00:02:05 | 00:02:23 00:00:17 14%
London Wall / Wood Street EB 00:01:08 | 00:01:21 00:00:13 19%
Moorgate / South Place SB 00:00:53 | 00:01:05 00:00:12 22%
Moorgate / South Place NB 00:01:06 | 00:01:17 00:00:11 17%
London Wall / Wood Street NB 00:00:06 | 00:00:16 00:00:11 188%
Moorgate / South Place WB 00:00:59 | 00:01:06 00:00:07 12%
London Wall / Moorgate WB 00:02:38 | 00:02:41 00:00:03 2%
London Wall / Moorgate EB 00:02:38 | 00:02:41 00:00:03 2%
Beech Street / Aldersgate WB 00:00:50 | 00:00:47 -00:00:03 -6%
Beech Street / Aldersgate EB 00:01:37 | 00:01:29 -00:00:07 -8%
Old Street / Goswell Road SB 00:02:38 | 00:02:17 -00:00:20 -13%
London Wall / Wood Street SB 00:00:45 | 00:00:22 -00:00:24 -52%
London Wall / Moorgate NB 00:02:38 | 00:02:04 -00:00:34 -21%
Old Street / Goswell Road NB 00:04:05 | 00:03:16 -00:00:50 -20%

= Again as there are multiple movements on each junction arm (for example there two
lanes at Old Street / Goswell Road WB), effects can be masked and as such it is

necessary to observe the changes to queue times at the traffic lane level as shown in

table 4 below.

Table 4: Change to average queue times and average queue length by traffic lane level in the AM

peak only

Change to Average

average Average queue

queue queue time | time %

length (baseline) (closure) | Difference | Difference

Page 29




Ly
gl o e
25 biRigE, -

CiTY
LONDON

BRIEFING NOTE

000322 [o0oRaL]  sax |

Ropemaker / Moorgate EB traffic lane 6.8 00:02:11

Old Street / Goswell Road WB ahead and right 0.2 00:00:43 | 00:01:27 00:00:44 104%
Old Street / Goswell Road NB ahead and left -0.8 00:00:28 | 00:01:12 00:00:44 157%
London Wall / Moorgate EB ahead lane 7.4 00:01:46 | 00:02:28 00:00:42 40%
Old Street / Goswell Road WB ahead and left 0.6 00:00:28 | 00:01:06 00:00:38 135%
Long Lane / Aldersgate EB traffic lane -0.2 00:00:14 | 00:00:43 00:00:29 207%
Moorgate / London Wall SB Nearside 5.4 00:01:01 | 00:01:22 00:00:21 35%
Moorgate / London Wall SB Right Turn 3.3 00:00:22 | 00:00:44 00:00:21 94%
Moorgate / Finsbury Pavement NB ahead and right 2.8 00:00:28 | 00:00:46 00:00:18 65%
London Wall / Moorgate WB nearside ahead lane 1.0 00:00:28 | 00:00:46 00:00:18 65%
Old Street / Goswell Road NB cycle lane -0.2 00:00:25 | 00:00:42 00:00:17 67%
Finsbury Pavement / Moorgate SB 1.7 00:00:26 | 00:00:40 00:00:14 54%
Aldersgate / Beech Street SB ahead and left -1.2 00:00:33 | 00:00:46 00:00:14 42%
London Wall / Wood Street EB ahead and left 0.6 00:00:28 | 00:00:41 00:00:13 48%
London Wall / Wood Street WB Traffic Lane 0.5 00:00:50 | 00:01:03 00:00:12 25%
Wood Street / London Wall NB 0.4 00:00:06 | 00:00:16 00:00:11 188%
Long Lane / Aldersgate EB cycle feeder lane 0.0 00:00:20 | 00:00:30 00:00:10 48%
South Place / Moorgate cycle lane -0.1 00:00:25 | 00:00:34 00:00:09 37%
Aldersgate Street / Beech Street SB cycle feeder

lane -0.9 00:00:21 | 00:00:29 00:00:07 35%
Beech Street / Aldersgate WB Cycle Feeder Lane -1.6 00:00:15 | 00:00:21 00:00:06 37%
London Wall / Wood Street WB Ahead and Right 0.9 00:00:49 | 00:00:53 00:00:05 9%
Aldersgate / Beech Street SB ahead and right 0.0 00:00:29 | 00:00:31 00:00:01 4%
London Wall / Wood Street WB Cycle Lane -0.1 00:00:26 | 00:00:26 00:00:00 1%
London Wall / Wood Street EB offside -1.9 00:00:40 | 00:00:40 -00:00:00 -1%
South Place / Moorgate ahead and left 0.7 00:00:33 | 00:00:31 -00:00:02 -7%
Finsbury Pavement / South Place Right turn lane 0.8 00:00:27 | 00:00:25 -00:00:02 -8%
London Wall / Moorgate WB right turn lane 2.8 00:00:50 | 00:00:47 -00:00:02 -5%
Old Street / Goswell Road SB offside 0.3 00:00:44 | 00:00:38 -00:00:06 -13%
Aldersgate Street / Beech Street NB ahead and

left 0.0 00:00:29 | 00:00:22 -00:00:07 -23%
Moorgate / Finsbury Pavement NB ahead and left 4.2 00:00:38 | 00:00:31 -00:00:07 -19%
Old Street / Goswell Road EB cycle lane 0.2 00:00:52 | 00:00:44 -00:00:08 -14%
Old Street / Goswell Road EB nearside -0.5 00:00:55 | 00:00:46 -00:00:09 -16%
London Wall / Moorgate NB cycle lane -4.0 00:00:34 | 00:00:25 -00:00:09 -27%
Aldersgate Street / Beech Street NB ahead and

right -0.3 00:00:30 | 00:00:17 | -00:00:13 -42%
Beech Street / Aldersgate WB ahead and right -11.7 00:01:22 | 00:01:08 -00:00:13 -16%
Old Street / Goswell Road SB nearside -0.6 00:01:54 | 00:01:40 -00:00:15 -13%
Wood Street / London Wall SB 0.2 00:00:45 | 00:00:22 -00:00:24 -52%
London Wall / Moorgate NB traffic lane 8.6 00:02:04 | 00:01:39 -00:00:24 -20%
Old Street / Goswell Road EB offside -0.1 00:01:16 | 00:00:50 -00:00:26 -35%
London Wall / Moorgate EB left turn lane 2.3 00:00:51 | 00:00:13 -00:00:39 -76%

Page 30




BRIEFING NOTE

LONDON

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32






This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Appendix 4

Expenditure to date

Description Approv(e£d) Budget Expenditure (£) Balance (£)
PreEv Fees 15,000 15,000 0
Prekv P&T Staff Cost 13,500 13,500 0
Env Servs Staff Cost 5,000 0 5,000
P&T Staff Costs 25,000 21,197 3,803
P&T Fees 62,025 21,161 40,864
TOTAL 120,525 70,858 49,667

Page 35




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Appendix 5

Total additional funds to reach Gateway 4

Estimated Cost

Item Description (£) *

Staff Costs gtig/kl';;rlﬁsrogigc;g; Fr;rg:'ﬁt;t( lggnmangqirr?is;tti g; ;ransportation, structures and highway design, 483,608
City Public Realm: Project management of public realm and lighting design 342,936
Highways: Design and technical support for highway and lighting 64,280

Total additional Staff Costs 890,824

Professional Fees Traffic model consultant to advise brief and liaise with TfL £10,000
Structural assessments and possible strengthening design 80,000
Utility C3 notices 20,000
Traffic modelling 455,611
Lighting strategy and concept design 20,000
Public Realm concept design 50,000

Total Professional Fees 635,611

Total Estimated Cost To Gateway 4 1,526,435

*Excludes any underspend to-date

Page 37




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s) Dated:
Streets & Walkways Sub — For decision 04/09/2018
Planning & Transportation — For decision 11/09/2018
Resources Allocation Sub — For decision 04/10/2018
Court of Common Council — For decision 18/10/2018
Subject: Public
Tudor Street/New Bridge Street — Update Report (Appx 4 — Non-public)
Report of: For Decision
Carolyn Dwyer, Director of the Built Environment
Report author:
Sam Lee

Summary

In May 2018, the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee considered a further report on
a new layout for the Tudor St/ New Bridge St junction. That report advised Members
of the potential implications of two City-led developments, Fleet House and the New

Combined Courts, and recommended that the scheme should be deferred for street

work co-ordination purposes and to avoid abortive works and costs to the scheme.

However, Committee resolved that the scheme should be progressed as a matter of
urgency, and asked officers to bring back a further report to set out more detailed
information, together with a programme for delivery.

Following a detailed review, it remains the case that the design and delivery of the
Tudor St/ New Bridge St scheme is likely to be impacted by several planned
activities in the vicinity. These include:

e gas diversion works by Cadent for Thames Tideway on Victoria
Embankment;

gas main replacement works by Cadent in Tudor St;

the City’s Fleet House development in Bridewell Place;

the City’s New Combined Court development off Fleet St;

a review of access to the Embankment from either Temple Ave or Carmelite
St by the Temples’ consultant.

Most of these activities are expected to take place over the next five years, but at
this point in time, the timing and impact of each activity remains uncertain.

What is certain is that for the Tudor St/ New Bridge St scheme to proceed, TfL
require around nine months to undertake public consultation, detailed design,
signoff, mobilisation and procurement. If started now, these aspects would likely
coincide with Cadent’s planned gas works for Tideway in summer 2019 which would
otherwise be a constraint on construction.

Page 39



As a result, the earliest start date for construction would be the Autumn of 2019, but
by that time the Fleet House development could also be underway. That likelihood is
based on the current best estimate from the City Surveyor, but the degree of
certainty on that programme, and the extent to which the scheme and the
development could coexist, are both currently unknown.

Therefore, progressing the Tudor St / New Bridge St scheme now would involve a
degree of risk in three specific aspects:

e once consultation and design are completed next year, conflicting on-street
activities such as Fleet House could require the works to be deferred or an
interim solution identified;

e changes to the highway as a consequence of nearby building development
may require the design to be revised temporarily, making some aspects of the
design work abortive and with the developer incurring additional cost;

e through the work of the Temples’ consultant, more advantageous options to
improve access to the area from the Embankment may be identified, making
the Tudor St/ New Bridge St scheme sub-optimal, making the design cost to
that point abortive (should there be insufficient funding or priority to progress
both).

If Members are minded to accept these risks for now, then public consultation and
detailed design could commence later this year (assuming Members agree to
allocate funding to allow TfL to proceed), with a recommendation that a final decision
to begin construction be made next year when these risks and issues are better
understood.

However, if these risks are thought unacceptable, the alternative would be to defer
public consultation and detailed design until the likely completion of Fleet House
towards the end of 2021. The key risk here is that if the development programme for
Fleet House moves back, the scheme would be further delayed. In addition, other
activities could also come to the fore that might also delay construction beyond 2021
or require the scheme to be amended again, although the latter is currently thought
to be unlikely.

Therefore, on balance it is proposed to seek City funding for the scheme now,
request TfL commence public consultation and detailed design, and report back in
the first half of 2019 for Members to agree whether the scheme can progress to
construction. At that point, there will be far more certainty on all the activities and
implications outlined above, enabling Members to decide with certainty whether
construction can continue, whether it must be deferred or whether an interim solution
is necessary or achievable.

In the meantime, officers will also continue to discuss the safety performance of the
current Tudor St / New Bridge St junction with TfL to see whether any interim
changes are necessary and whether TfL funding might yet be made available.

In terms of funding, the maximum estimated cost to deliver the scheme is £3.03m.
Given £514k has already been set aside to cover TfL’s costs to date, a balance of

Page 40



£2.52m is now required. This is proposed to be met from DBE’s allocation of the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and would require the re-profiling or deferral of
other DBE projects deemed to be lower priority. Formal approval for the use of CIL in
this way would first be required from the Resource Allocation Sub Committee.

Finally, to be clear, decisions of the Streets & Walkways Sub Committee and the
Planning & Transportation Committee on whether or not to proceed on this matter
are made in the City’s capacity as traffic and highway authority, not in its capacity as
owner of the prospective development sites. The relevant considerations for those
Committees are therefore only those that relate to traffic and highway management.

Recommendation(s)

Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee and the Planning & Transportation
Committee are recommended to:
e Instruct officers to continue to work with TfL to finalise the Tudor St/ New
Bridge St scheme layout as reported in May 2018.
¢ Recommend that Resource Allocation Sub Committee approve £2.52m to
fund the scheme from DBE’s allocation of the Community Infrastructure Levy.
e Receive a report to agree final commencement in due course.

Resource Allocation Sub Committee is recommended to:
e Agree to allocate £2.52m for the Tudor St / New Bridge St scheme from
DBE’s Community Infrastructure Levy allocation.

The Court of Common Council to recommended to:
e Endorse the recommendations of the Streets & Walkways Sub, the Planning
& Transportation and the Resource Allocation Sub Committees.

Main Report
Background & Current Position

1. In May 2018, the Streets & Walkways Sub-committee considered a report on the
scheme to amend the Tudor St/ New Bridge St junction. The report informed
Members of the technical assessments carried out by TfL, as well as the potential
implications associated with two key developments in the area. It recommended
that progress of the scheme should be deferred to avoid potentially abortive and
unnecessary costs as well as for street work co-ordination purposes. The
Committee however, requested that a further report setting out more information
on the implications together with a programme for delivery be brought back as a
matter of urgency.

2. TfL have already completed the technical assessment of the alternative layout for

the Tudor St/ New Bridge St junction, including traffic modelling and road safety
audits. These were provided to Members in May 2018 and largely identified

Page 41



neutral impacts, enabling TfL to accept the proposed layout. However, to proceed
to the next stage, which is public consultation and detailed design, TfL require
confirmation that City funding has been agreed.

This report therefore provides further information on the potential implications of
other highway activities and developments in the area, the potential programmes
for delivery and the recommended City funding mechanism for the scheme.

Highway Activities, Developments & Other Considerations

Utility works

4.

As advised at the July 2018 Streets & Walkways Sub Committee, Cadent Gas for
Thames Tideway Tunnel are undertaking trial holes on the Embankment to
determine the scale of works necessary to divert two large gas mains in Spring /
Summer 2019. Members are also aware that Cadent have suggested the works
could require a full closure of the Embankment, which would likely place a
moratorium on other major works across the City and much of Central London.

In this context, TfL would be highly unlikely to undertake major works on New
Bridge St during this period, placing a firm constraint on any construction
programme during this period. However, at the time of writing, it is not yet known
whether Cadent will require such a closure, or for how long it might be.

Ward Members will also be aware that following several large gas leaks in the
Tudor St area, Cadent Gas are also planning to replace the gas mains along
Tudor St at some point in the next 2-3 years. If the Tideway-related works
proceed as expected in 2019, it is unlikely these works will take place at the
same time due to the combined impact on the gas network, making a window of
summer 2020 currently more likely.

When this does take place, Tudor St could be affected for 3—4 months (based on
examples of similar work elsewhere). At that time, if access to parts of the area
become closed off, arrangements would have to be made to allow access from
other routes and directions.

Development Activity

8.

9.

The two developments likely to affect or be affected by the Tudor St/ New Bridge
St junction scheme are Fleet House on the corner of Bridewell Place and New
Bridge St, and the New Combined Courts and Police Headquarter (NCC)
between Whitefriars St and Salisbury Court (see Appendix 1). Both are either
solely or jointly led by the City Surveyor.

Taking each in turn, the implications of these developments on the Tudor St/
New Bridge St scheme are as follows:

Fleet House (likely commencement in Autumn 2019 for 2 years).

Page 42



e The Fleet House development will require HGV access to / from Bridewell
Place for demolition and construction works. In particular, the construction
phase is likely to require vehicles standing on-street in Bridewell Place,
making construction of the scheme at the same time as the development
particularly challenging.

¢ [f instead the scheme was to be constructed before the development, the
scheme may not be compatible with the site’s construction logistics,
making interim changes to the scheme necessary for the duration of the
development works at the cost of the developer.

e |f the scheme causes logistical issues for the site, this could significantly
increase the programme for the development works, prolonging the
disruption to the immediate area.

e However, without a Construction Logistics Plan in place at this point, the
extent of this conflict, the need for an interim solution (as well as its cost)
and the impact on the development’s programme cannot yet be evaluated.

e Finally, the current scheme (as designed) also have an impact on the
future servicing of the completed development. The closure of Bridewell
Place by New Bridge St to vehicles will make servicing access to all
premises in Bridewell Place potentially more difficult, and with the
development intending to remove the current off-street loading bay,
servicing will have to take place from the street.

New Combined Courts (NCC) and Police HQ (likely commencement: 2021)

a. The NCC and Police Headquarters is still in its early stages of
development and as such it has not been possible to confirm the transport
and security requirements because they are still being explored by the
NCC client and design team.

b. Nevertheless, some very early conceptual transport and security proposals
are illustrated in Appendix 2. They could include new streets within and
around the development, making Whitefriars St a two-way street, and
greater security aspirations in the vicinity, including the potential to create
access onto the Embankment to aid the police’s rapid response
requirements.

c. At present these appear unlikely to be affected by the implementation of
the Tudor St/ New Bridge St scheme, but with construction of the NCC not
anticipated to begin until at least 2021, the construction logistics and public
realm implications have yet to be fully explored.

Temple Area Traffic Review

10.As part of the Temple Area Traffic Review project, the viability of improving motor
vehicle access and egress from the Embankment by amending the Temple
Avenue or Carmelite St junctions is being investigated.

11.This review is being led by a consultant engaged by the Temples, with support
provided by City and TfL officers. Our best estimate is that this work is around

Page 43



nine months or more from completion due to TfL’s resources and procedures as
well as the level of complexity involved at these two junctions.

12.However, if opportunities are identified from this work, such proposals might
provide more favourable access to the local area than the current Tudor St/ New
Bridge St proposal. At that point, a decision may be required as to whether both
schemes are viable and / or affordable given it is highly unlikely TfL will allocate
any funding for such changes. Equally the current Thames Tideway site
requirements may preclude any changes to access and egress to / from the
Embankment until the site completes in around 2021.

Programme

13. Appendix 3 provides a programme illustrating the various workstreams required
for the Tudor St/ New Bridge St scheme, as well as the other works and activities
in the area. It should be noted that these timescales are current estimates and
will be subject to change, especially where detailed planning has yet to start or
where proposals are yet to emerge.

14.The work streams and timescales associated with the Tudor St/ New Bridge St
scheme have been provided by TfL, who (because of the priority of the project)
have offered to accelerate their standard public consultation process, reducing
the typical six-month period by half.

15.The timescales for Fleet House and the NCC have been provided by the City
Surveyor, who has also reiterated that these dates are only indicative at this
point.

16. Appendix 3 illustrates the three main windows to deliver the Tudor St/ New
Bridge St scheme.

Option 1. Works could commence immediately following the Thames
Tideway Cadent Gas diversion works in Q3 of 2019/20, but the Fleet House
development is likely to have started at that point, plus the Embankment
optioneering will not have reached the detailed design stage (if such options
have been identified). This option delivers the pace Members have requested,
but involves risk around likely conflicts between works, implications on Fleet
House and potentially a lost opportunity (due to the likelihood of insufficient
funding or priority to deliver both schemes) to investigate access to / from the
Embankment.

Option 2. Works could commence around Q3 2021/22 following the projected
completion of the Fleet House development and at the completion of the
detailed design for access/egress improvements to the Embankment. This
could also coincide with the demolition works associated with the NCC. By
this point, further information on the security and transport requirements
associated with the NCC and police headquarter will be known. This provides
more certainty of design, but not the pace Members have requested. Creating
a linkage to the completion of Fleet House could also mean the scheme would
move back if the development was delayed.

Page 44



Option 3. Works could commence following the completion of the NCC and
police headquarters around 2026/27. This would avoid all potential
implications associated with the activities identified in this report but would
result in a considerable delay in implementation.

Implications

Financial Implications

17.In July 2018, the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee was advised that TfL’s cost
range to deliver the scheme was between £1.63m to £3.03m, with £2.33m being
the likely final cost. This excluded hostile vehicle mitigation measures around the
new bus stop on Blackfriars Bridge. A detailed breakdown of the cost is provided
in Appendix 4 (NON-PUBLIC AGENDA).

18.Members may recall that a total of £575k (£400k from TfL and £175K from the
City) had previously been set aside to deliver the original scheme. Of this, TfL
has expended approximately £61k, leaving a balance of £514k.

19.1f Members agree that the scheme should proceed, it is proposed that £2.52m
(£3.03m - £514Kk) is set aside from DBE’s Community infrastructure Levy (CIL)
allocation. Given this is TfL’s maximum estimated cost range, this should ensure
that sufficient funding is in place, but if the eventual cost is below this level, the
remaining funding will be returned to the CIL allocation. Officers expect that TfL
payments will be made in stages via verified invoices for costs incurred.

20.Members will be aware that funding to deliver a range of Corporate, Member and
Departmental priorities is under significant pressure. The allocation of £2.52m
from DBE’s CIL allocation towards this scheme is achievable, but only through
the re-profiling or deferral of other lower priority projects. A report outlining DBE’s
project prioritisation in light of this and DBE’s wider budgetary challenges will be
submitted to Members in due course.

Legal Implications

21.To implement the various highway changes within the proposed scheme, TfL and
the City would need to exercise their respective powers (for their respective
highways) under s.6 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. As part of this,
statutory public consultation would be required, and if there were objections,
these would have to be appropriately considered before the scheme could
proceed.

22.The City Corporation must have regard to its overall traffic management duties of
securing the efficient use of the road network, expeditious, safe and convenient
movement of traffic, and avoiding congestion and disruption. It must also have
regard to its road network co-ordination responsibilities and its responsibility to
protect the public right to use and enjoy the highway. Landowner considerations
relating to City properties (including development costs) are not material
considerations that the City should take into account when exercising its
functions as traffic and highway authority.

Page 45



Proposals

23.In conclusion, the option with the least risk of complication and potential for
abortive cost and design change is Option 2 (commencement in 2021). However,
this does not meet Members’ expectations regarding the pace of delivery, which
is more closely met through Option 1 (commencement in the Autumn 2019).
However, this option contains significant uncertainties that cannot be closed out
until the first half of 2019.

24 . Therefore, on balance it is proposed to seek funding for the scheme now, request
TfL to commence public consultation and detailed design, and report back in the
first half of 2019 for Members to agree whether the scheme can progress to
construction. At that point, there will be far more certainty on all the activities and
implications outlined above, enabling Members to decide with certainty whether
construction can continue, whether it must be deferred or whether an interim
solution is necessary or achievable.

Conclusion

25.This paper has identified three potential delivery opportunities for the Tudor St/
New Bridge St scheme:
e late 2019 after the Thames Tideway Cadent gas diversion works;
o late 2021 following the completion of the Fleet House construction;
e 2026 following the completion of the NCC.

26.The recommendation (to seek funding approval now and to commence public
consultation and detailed design, subject to a final decision next year on whether
to begin construction) provides an appropriate balance between Members’ desire
to progress the scheme and the associated risks that cannot be quantified until
next year.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Location plan of developments

Appendix 2 — Indicative transport and security proposals for the NCC
Appendix 3 — Delivery programme

Appendix 4 — Cost breakdown (NON-PUBLIC)

Background Papers:
o Report of the Director of the Built Environment on Tudor Street/New Bridge
Street 21/05/2018 and associated minutes.

Sam Lee
Group Manager, Department of the Built Environment

T: 020 7332 1921
E: citytransportation@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 46


mailto:citytransportation@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Location plan of City developments

Am
O uGH SQUARE

RN /

Appendix 1

Peterborough Court

\ 13510 141 133131 gy

. FLEET STREET  am .

River Court

120

Ludgate House

10710111

) w 9 \Laes 23 =
PH & Chr ) He N

K] " (j;;

ot

= (2}
= s

\ A2

Cycle =

o 2

Staton @

7
N
E)

no

Fleet House _. ‘

2 [ a F— %
i of
New Combined Courts — - g e T
; dl e | _
& Police Headquarter = O — Brtiowet @
_ \3! s House Theatre ~
3 i - lw)
> ‘8 G o
: % i
—|@ @ n
) o 3
) w
: 2 S Fi
B z m
_J Proryof areriresCot & 1
e 1 =
I =
e F ) S
. [
TEAToNST m
]
PH 8 2% ; 24 22
= TUDOR STREET
= - < I Sk s
] || 2 ~
o - ) WATERGATE
) § .
S o3 s e el |2 L -
- d ) :
= “8 \ i Som 7 — &
H & TALLIS STREET m g .
] e a W A §
H2 £ ] Talis %
kS o
] z z Uniever Houze
3 | == |
:] Il 50 — |
! 1 —u
- H $38 0 i
™~ 3
O 3
__Eﬁ E Audit House: o
BP Carmeiite House © Sion &
- ﬂ College +“¢
3 =] H:mn\lan o N . €
g—————7—_—F% - L / G
o
T J =

BLACKFRIARS \
UNDERPASS
e — i \

Page 47



gy abed

Appendix 2: Indicative transport and security proposals for the NCC & police headquarter

A z— —___——

o Cm o

Loz
Retalned
Court COMMERGIAL lIsted b
Lot facade lI \
Posslble | ||
change of || \
e floor levels | |I
; adjacentto |
a' izmaon| | © . . — '
_______ @_I’ - L e ran X : llsted facades | I
am |, 12.2m l am — \ e’ e |
A A r . _____——-—-Il_ﬂ
LG l,
Posslble |
SECTION 2-2 F'nstslbllcd- controlled Il
controlle QLORYS \
access |
,,,,, I
Polle =
=]
Loz
,—/’_I;J—f
= |
’ Lot \
s L
= o TAXIDROF OFF
!_ L am 2m . 8 SALISEJRY SGLARE
=
@
w
T G
=
@ ETAET 8
%’ +40mt7.3m ACD SALISBURY
T SOUARE
2m 1|‘ [ 1L Sm e i
SECTION ¥=¥
__r_‘_,-l\
— 1 Potentlal _ Vehlcular
——— Refuse access at
- - \ access at LG
- VL
| \_\____F___w__,ﬂ--\,.-
Courts . e Pollee J'"
Proposad two way
Lo+ ] Lot trafflc on Whitefrlars
o Street to ald pollce
z A — response
= S v - ke
svofmentfim e _
G AOiD a’ a I'l [} AT M IR - mmnn OWHERSHIP
BOUNDARY
3m Gim | am
1 R v
SECTION ¥-X T e L
Pulos an ndvbed)

Opsion BA Street Secticns Security and Traffic Analysis Iption BA Street Plan Security Analysis



Appendix 3 — Delivery programme

Est 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Activity/Task duration
(weeks) Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
Tudor St - CoL Member
approval 6 -
Tudor St - Public
7
Engagement q
Tudor St - Finalise concept 7 h
design
Tudor St - TfL Detailed
\ 27 [ ]
design
Tudor St - Construction 30 = o |
|
Option 1 Option 2
TT - Cadent trial holes 6 -
Sgglent - Tudor Street 12 I
LY
(D - Cadent gas mains
. 26

@Dersion
@ple Area - City Streets 18 . H . |

ks I
Temple Area - TfL jns.
Review existing & explore 40 — I
options* |
Temple Area - TfL jn. I
Concept, impacts & Col. 78 —
approvals* |
Temple Area - TfL jns. 50 |
Consult & Detailed design* ;
Temple Area - TfL jns. Build* 30 _

1
Fleet House construction®* 104 . -
NCC & Police Headquarter
e 186 W

construction

* Subject to Vectos/TfL/ColL progression, funding and agreement

** Earliest likley start Sept 2019

*** Anticipated programme

2026

Q4 Qi1 Q2 Q3

/l//,le

Option 3

m 3.5 year build




Page 50



Agenda Item 7

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership

Unique Project Identifier: 11599 Report Date: 22/08/18

Core Project Name: Bank Junction Interim Safety Scheme (Bank on Safety)
Programme Affiliation: Bank Junction Improvements Project (All Change at Bank)
Project Manager: Gillian Howard

Next Gateway to be passed: Outcome report (G6)

[2] Project Brief

Project Mission statement: To improve safety and reduce casualties at Bank
Junction ahead of the original longer-term project delivery (which was scheduled for
completion by 2021).

Definition of need: Heightened Member and public concerns regarding how
dangerous the junction was following a fatality in 2015. It was not acceptable to wait
to deliver a safety improvement as part of the overall holistic project which was not
planned to deliver change until 2021.

Key measures of success:

1) A significant safety improvement at Bank (minimum 25%)

2) Maintain access for deliveries

3) Improve Air Quality at Bank — and not make the wider monitoring area worse

4) Not unreasonably impact on traffic flow, whilst preferably improving bus
journey times.

[3] Highlights

Finance:

Total anticipated cost to deliver [£]: 1,404,207

Contingency Approved (unadjusted) [£]:33,000

Total potential project liability (cost + contingency) [£]:1,437,207
Contingency used [£]:19,322

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Annual cost for
enforcement cameras which will be met out of the On-Street Parking account (if
scheme approved)

Programme Affiliation [£]: (up to) £19.5 million combined

[A] Budget Approved
to Date*

£1,401,207

[B] New Financial
Requests
£36,000

(requested in previous
report, not yet approved)

[C] New Budget Total
(Post approval)

1,437,207

[D] Previous Total
Estimated Cost of
Project

[E] New Total
Estimated Cost of
Project

[F] Variance in Total
Estimated Cost of
Project (since last report)

£1,437,207

£1,437,207

£0.00

[G] Spend to Date

[H] Anticipated future budget requests

£1,323,320

Future budget requests will be made depending on the
outcome of the feasibility work to improve the compliance

Page 51




and behaviour of the junction. The value of which cannot
be accurately estimated at this point in time.

*Contingency when realised and used is expected to be included here
Headline Financial changes:
Since ‘Project Proposal’ (G2) report:
<4 £120,000 was approved of an estimated £500,000 project in December 2015.

Increased approved budget to £387,100 approved in Sept 16.
Since ‘Options Appraisal and Design’ (G3-4) report:

A 4> V¥V No G3 report

Since ‘Authority to start Work’ (G5) report:

A a G4/5 approved December 2016 — Approved budget £1,179,100

Further increase requested to £1,368,207 in September 2017 to cover additional
staff costs

An additional £33,000 was agreed from the Project Sub contingency in February
2018 to complete an additional piece of work. This giving a total current approved
budget of 1,401,207

Project Status:
Overall RAG rating: Green
Previous RAG rating: Green

[4] Member Decisions and Delegated Authority

Outstanding decision to be made at Court of Common Council on 13t September as to
whether the Bank on Safety experimental scheme is to be made permanent

[5] Narrative and change

Date and type of last report:

03 July 2018 Issues report (Streets and Walkways Sub Committee followed by Planning
and Transportation and Projects Sub Committee. To be heard by Policy and Resources
and Court of Common Council)

Key headline updates and change since last report.
Last report still going through process so no changes to the last report.

Headline Scope/Design changes, reasons why, impact of change:
Since ‘Project Proposal’ (G2) report:
n/a
Since ‘Options Appraisal and Design’ (G3-4 report):
n/a
Since ‘Authority to Start Work’ (G5) report:
No significant design change since G4/5 report in December 2016

Timetable and Milestones:
Expected timeframe for the project delivery: November 2018 (experiment ends)
Milestones:
1) Court of Common Council Decision September 2018
2) Outline improvements to the Bank on Safety scheme, if approved, to improve
behaviour and compliance in January/February 2019

Page 52




|3) Implementation of the improvements approved in 2), summer — autumn 2019 |

Are we on track for this stage of the project against the plan/major
milestones? Y

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? Y

Risks and Issues
Top 3 risks:
Risk description

A small, but potentially influential, number of stakeholders
want to re-look at including taxis into the mix of traffic through
Bank. Risk that this will distract from progressing the long-
term scheme and its focus on pedestrians who still have not
got the space that they need in a growing City.

Top 3 issues realised

Issue Description

Impact and action taken

Realised Cost

Pick and drop off
activity on Poultry
and servicing is
causing a potential
safety issue.
Vehicles are U-
turning with poor
visibility close to
the traffic signals

Network performance team are
reviewing Poultry outside the hotel and
whether anything can be done to assist
with the issue of pick up and drop off by
changing the current layout at all,
(outside of the project — as the project
didn’t change the ability to pick up and
drop off in this location).

U-Turn as the causation factor has not
shown up in the provisional collision
reports during restriction hours to date.
Continuing to monitor.

Need to reduce
the number of
PCN's issued, as
despite high
compliance the
number of notices
per day is still high.

business case for alternative signage Is
being undertaken for submission to
DFT subject to the experimental
scheme being made permanent. Focus
is on the cues and clues work and
making the gateway points more
noticeable by physically building out the
footways around them to narrow the
traffic lanes (where possible). (subject
of the attached report)

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?

The Bank on Safety scheme has generated a reasonable amount of media, both
positive and negative, locally and nationally. The most popular piece focuses on
the generation of Penalty Charge Notices at the Junction. This money is ring fenced
for Transport Improvements under the terms of the On-Street Parking Reserve.
Most media cover the PCN story with the reasons for the scheme; largely they are
quite balanced pieces.

Page 53




There has also been a lot of public interest which is largely positive and encourages
the City to go further. Conversely there is some public response regarding the
restrictions on taxis across the junction and that this should be relaxed.

Its is likely that press activity will increase around the Court of Common decision.

Page 54




Commiittees:

Dates:

Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee | 04 September 2018

Projects Sub-Committee 12 September 2018

Subject: Gateway 6 Public

Bank on Safety: Further detail on Progress Report

additional funds sought Regular

Report of: For Information

Director of the Built Environment

Report Author:
Gillian Howard

» Dashboard

o Project Status: Green
o Spend to date: £1,323,320
o Overall Project Risk: Green
o Approved Budget: £1,401,207
* Last Gateway approved: Gateway 4/5 December 2016

* Progress to date including resources expended

At the Streets and Walkways Committee in July, it was requested a further report
outlining the work and timescale to complete the ‘Suggested Improvements’
works in the previous Bank on Safety Conclusion report, be submitted. This report
more comprehensively provides a proposed timescale and explains what the
requested £36k will be utilised for.

This work is subject to the outcome of the Court of Common Council’s decision on
13 September 2018.

Total Estimate Cost £1,437,207

Recommendations

It is recommended that the report be received by Members for information.

Summary

Main Report

1.

Reporting period

Quarter 2 2018/19

2. Progress to date

In the Bank on Safety Conclusion report, previously received by
this Committee in July, some additional measures to further
enhance the operation of the scheme were mentioned with the
aim to improve compliance and behaviour at the junction.
Implementing any such further measures is subject to the Court

Version 7 — Sep 2016

Page 55




of Common Council’s approval of the experiment which will be
recommended to the Court for approval in September 2018.

1. Members requested additional information on each of the
measures, including timeframes and next steps.

2. A forward programme is presented below.

Timeframe Programme Description

September/October 2018 Undertake scoping and
assessment of footway build-
out opportunities, line
marking changes, changes to
pedestrian crossing times,
coloured surfaces treatments,
signage opportunities for taxi
ranks and to investigate any
new disabled parking bays.

September — November 2018 | Initial designs developed for
the items listed above.

November/December 2018 Costing developed for the
delivery of the design and
implementation of the above,
as well as preparing the
Committee reports for the
revised gateway 4/5.

3. The scoping phase will include review of existing scheme
drawings and data sources to assist in determining the
feasibility of any proposed improvement measures.

4. The design phase will identify engineering related
challenges of enforcement gateway and pedestrian footway
build-out/widening opportunities, due to the complexity of
the Bank station structure. It will also identify any
underground utility challenges and any conflict with vehicle
turning movements which could be associated with the
footway build-out/widening and lining changes.

5. The potential benefits will be assessed to determine
whether the proposed changes are impactful and result in
behavioural change including improved scheme compliance
(e.g. through assessing potential pedestrian responses to
coloured surfaces, monitoring of vehicle compliance across
the junction etc.).

6. Following the assessment there will be a further Gateway
4/5 report in early 2019, for Members’ decision.

Version 7 — Sep 2016

Page 56




7. Approximately 190 hours of design engineering work and
170 hours of project manager time have provisionally been
allocated to develop the proposed measures. This includes
time for scoping, design engineering resource, and
stakeholder engagement. The number of hours may change
subject to the outcome of the scoping exercise.

8. Much of this work is sequential, but where work streams can
be progressed concurrently they will be so that assessed
improvements can be presented to Members as quickly as
possible.

3. Next steps 9. The following actions will be undertaken:

a. Officers will scope and design proposed improvement
measures, as indicated above, and

b. Reportin Q1 (2019) on the measures that can be
brought forward regarding design and proposed delivery
and associated costs.

Contact
Report Author Gillian Howard
Email Address Gillian.Howard@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number | 020 7332 3139

Version 7 — Sep 2016

Page 57



mailto:Gillian.Howard@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Agenda Iltem 8

Committee(s): Date(s):

Streets & Walkways Sub - For information | 4 September 2018
Committee

Planning & Transportation - For Decision 11 September 2018
Committee

Court of Common Council - For Decision 18 October 2018
Subject: Public

Adoption of the City Lighting Strategy

Report of: For Information
Director of the Built Environment

Summary

This report seeks approval for the adoption of the revised City Lighting Strategy and
to inform Members of the results of public consultation and the subsequent revisions
to the document. Reference copies of the final Strategy have been made available in
the Member’s Reading Room. This report also seeks authorisation from Members to
begin the development of lighting planning guidance that will contribute to the
achievement of the Strategy’s vision.

In September and October 2016, Members approved a Street Lighting LED
upgrade, together with the installation of a new Control Management System (CMS)
that allows the dynamic real time management of street lighting throughout the City
of London. This project also provided the ideal opportunity to establish the very first
City wide lighting strategy for the Square Mile.

The City Lighting Strategy will seek to improve the quality, efficiency, sustainability
and consistency of lighting for the whole City, providing a holistic approach to
lighting and helping to ensure a safe, vibrant and pleasant night environment for
businesses, residents and visitors.

Lighting consultants were appointed in January 2017 and a draft City Lighting
Strategy was then produced, following a series of workshops and night walks
including a wide variety of internal officers and City of London Police.

Once the draft was completed, Members agreed that a public consultation be
organised to receive comments on the draft Strategy. The public consultation was
held over a 6 week period. Stakeholder engagement continued after this period as
well, using a variety of methods as set out in this report. A summary of the
responses is included in the Consultation report (Appendix 1).

Following the consultation exercise, the Strategy document was amended: changes
are set out in full in the Amendments Table (Appendix 2).

Part of the Strategy includes a section on planning and policies, which recommends
the development of a planning guidance document, deemed necessary to guide and
educate private stakeholders on the lighting principles agreed in the Strategy.

Page 59



Recommendations

Members are asked to:

Approve the proposed amendments to the City Lighting Strategy document
set out in Appendix 2;

Endorse the City Lighting Strategy for onward approval by the Court of
Common Council;

Approve the development of a Planning guidance document on lighting,

as suggested in the Strategy’s recommendations.

Main Report
Background
1. The majority of the City’s street lighting equipment is in need of replacement

and a project is currently underway to deliver a technical upgrade. This
involves replacing the existing street lighting units with Light-Emitting Diode
(LED) lighting as well as a new integrated Control Management System
(CMS). In that context, the opportunity to establish a City Lighting Strategy will
ensure that the new system delivers lighting which is efficient, sustainable,
functional and that can enhance the City’s unique night-time character.

A series of workshops to identify key lighting issues and objectives were
organised by the City, and these identified the need for a lighting strategy to
set out the City’s approach in a holistic way. These workshops informed the
production of a brief, and Speirs and Major, a lighting design consultant, was
appointed in January 2017 to develop the Strategy.

Consultation has played a key role in the development of the Strategy, with a
working party set up, and workshops, meetings and presentations organised
to engage with a wide variety of stakeholders. This allowed the sharing of
different expertise and a better understanding of the current lighting issues
and opportunities. Such groups have included internal officers from planning,
highways, public realm, transportation, access, environmental health and
policy teams; Open Spaces department, Transport for London (TfL) and City
of London Police.

Presentations about the draft City Lighting Strategy and night walks in the City
lead by officers were also offered and attended by Members in November and
December 2017, prior to the public consultation.

The Strategy’s contents
5.

The draft Strategy was completed in December 2017, and Members agreed
that a public consultation on the draft version of the document should be
undertaken. The draft Strategy provided a series of key recommendations that
address three main areas:

a) Functional: these recommendations ensure the new lighting approach
provides a safe, secure and accessible environment for all.

Page 60




b) Environmental: this set of guidelines provides a sustainable approach
that balances the economic, environmental and social impact of lighting,
and considers how lighting can play a key role in the cultural development
of the City of London at night.

c) Technical: these recommendations suggest how the above can be
delivered, starting with fully embedding lighting within the planning system,
setting out a clear structure to manage street lighting, including the
formation of a Strategic Lighting Board, and encouraging the use of
smarter technologies and innovations.

Lighting standards that meet the needs of the different types of road and
spaces were also suggested as follows:

a) Lighting levels: it is recommended to provide different lighting levels for
the different types of road (main roads; side roads; footways and
Riverside) with lighting levels varied dependent upon time of day (e.g.
peak / off-peak / night time) and/or current need (e.g. crime or other
incidents). It is proposed lighting levels will be, where necessary,
determined on a street by street basis.

b) Colour temperature: the hue of white light of the public lighting systems
is recommended to be more consistent. It is suggested that the main street
and amenity lighting systems range from warm white light (2700K) to cool
white light (4000K) depending on the typology of the route or open space.

c) Lantern mounting height: it is recommended that mounting height of
lighting equipment should generally be sympathetic to the height and width
of a street or open area, to ensure uniformity of lighting level throughout
the City.

The Strategy also identifies a series of character areas within the City of
London, each with its unique attributes. Distinctive recommendations are
suggested for each area, which allows lighting to respect and enhance their
characteristics.

The public consultation

8.

The consultation on the draft Strategy took place over a period of 6 weeks,
from 227 January to 3@ March 2018. The consultation was carried out
through a series of drop-in sessions open to public, user surveys and night
walking tours, which engaged with local businesses, residents, workers and
visitors. The City Lighting Strategy gained widespread attention through social
media, receiving over 4,000 shares on LinkedIn; media outlets, with over 10
featured articles; and the public, with a total of 79 formal responses from
residents, workers, professionals and visitors.

In addition, throughout the consultation period and later, officers followed up
on requests made for further engagement, which provided additional
understanding of stakeholder issues/concerns. This wider activity included:

¢ Meeting with City of London Police
¢ Meeting with the City Property Association
e Meeting with Lighting Professionals and Academics

Page 61



10.

11.

An evening event was also organised following the consultation to present the
draft strategy document to the public. The evening featured a presentation of
the strategy followed by a night walk around the Square Mile, which included
the demonstration of the lighting Control Management System (CMS) that
allows street light levels to be dimmed or raised remotely. The event was very
well attended and received positive comments from a varied audience.

Consultation responses

All feedback received was collected and documented, and the key points by
questions have been summarised. The Consultation responses were positive
about the City Lighting Strategy and a detailed consultation report is attached
at Appendix 1.

The themes that emerged included:
a) Functional:

o Safety and Security — Respondents highlighted the importance of an
appropriate use and design of light to deter crime and anti-social
behaviours, as well as to improve the perception of safety;

b) Environmental:

¢ Inconsistency - There was a consensus that there is inconsistency and
lack of uniformity across the City lighting, regarding light fittings as well
as its quality;

e Character Areas - In general, there is strong support for improving and
highlighting historical monuments, buildings and character areas
throughout the City at night;

e Light Pollution — The effects of light pollution coming from commercial
properties, tall office blocks and signages was a source of great
concern for both residents and workers;

¢ Environment/Sustainability - Respondents are in support of a more
sustainable approach to City lighting that reduces light pollution,
minimises the urban heat island thermal footprint and diminishes sky
glow;

e Culture - Overall, culture was highlighted multiple times, suggesting
that a creative and innovative lighting approach should be considered
when highlighting architectural features, soft landscaping and
wayfinding;

c) Technical:

e Planning and policy - Respondents highlighted the need to better
regulate and integrate planning into the new City lighting approach;

e Technology and Innovations - a great number of responses
encouraged energy efficient technology and support the upgrade to
LED lighting and the introduction of motion sensors;

e Communication and Stakeholder Engagement - There were several
comments related to future communication and how the strategy should
be taken forward in the future;

Page 62



e Management - Questions were raised regarding the control and
management of the new CMS and how this would be co-ordinated by
the City of London,;

Current Position

12.

13.

The City Lighting Strategy has been amended to take account of the public
consultation comments, where appropriate. The draft document, incorporating
the amendments is now presented for adoption. Reference copies of the final
strategy have been made available in the Member’'s Reading Room.

The recommendations of the strategy are set to be implemented through a
series of programme and projects, described in the Delivery
recommendations, which include:

e The development of a planning guidance on lighting, which this report
seeks approval to initiate;

e Continue the current LED upgrade and Control Management System
installation following the implementation guidelines on lighting levels,
colours and management;

e Integration of lighting design in any new public realm project, following
the priorities identified in the Character areas;

e Update of lighting policies through the Local Plan review;

e The addition of a lighting section in the existing City Public realm
Technical Manual.

Proposals

14.

15.

Members are asked to approve the proposed changes set out in Appendix 2
and adopt the amended City Lighting Strategy (Background Paper).
Members are recommended to approve the development of a Planning
guidance document on lighting, as suggested in the Strategy’s
recommendations.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

16.

Comments following the consultation were reviewed to ensure the City
Lighting Strategy strives to follow the vision of the City of London Corporate
Plan to support a diverse and sustainable London within a globally-successful
UK; and contributes towards the achievement of the three Corporate aims and
their outcomes as follows:

Contribute to a flourishing society

o People are safe and feel safe through the careful design of lighting
the public realm

o People enjoy good health and wellbeing as a result of limiting
obtrusive light spill into windows, light pollution and using warm white
light in residential areas

o People have equal opportunities to enrich their lives and reach
their full potential in the City’s public spaces made accessible at night
through appropriate lighting

Page 63



Conclusion

17.

Appendices

O

Communities are cohesive and have the facilities they need in the
City’s welcoming spaces where people can meet and socialise during
the day as well as after dark

e Support a thriving economy

O

O

Businesses are trusted and socially and environmentally
responsible by taking a more sustainable approach to lighting

We are a global hub for innovation in finance and professional
services, commerce, and culture: our night time economy is
supported by better lighting to encourage commercial activities in the
public realm after dark

e Shape outstanding environments

O

O

(@)

We are digitally and physically well connected and responsive
through an interactive and efficient CMS

We inspire enterprise, excellence, creativity and collaboration with
stakeholders including engineers, designers, planners and developers
among others

We have clear air, land and water and a thriving sustainable
natural environment by reducing light pollution and energy
consumption

Our spaces are secure through the recommended lighting design
principles, resilient and well maintained, with a reduction of
maintenance costs through the use of LED lighting

This report updates Members about the City Lighting Strategy. It outlines the
process of drafting, consulting upon, reviewing the strategy and highlighted
the key priorities for its implementation.

Members are asked to approve the proposed amendments to the City Lighting
Strategy, adopt the revised document and approve the development of a
Planning guidance document.

e Appendix 1 — City Lighting Strategy Consultation Report

e Appendix 2 — City Lighting Strategy Amendments Table

Background Papers:

Draft City Lighting Strategy ‘Light + Darkness in the City, A Lighting Vision for the
City of London’. This can be viewed in the Member’s reading room, or an electronic
copy can be sent directly to Members on request.

Stefania Pizzato
Project Manager (City Public Realm)

T: 020 7332 3903
E: Stefania.pizzato@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 64


mailto:Stefania.pizzato@cityoflondon.gov.uk

== City Lighting Strategy

Public Consultation Report
22 January - 3 March 2018

# gmmmenn: ki
Enneast’

b it
‘. b L |
LU DL

25
s\

S1LL LY

Jason Hawkes




Page 66



Contents

1]
2|
3]
4
S|
6]

7]

8|

9l

]9 abed

10|

Appendix|

Introduction

City Lighting Strategy Overview
Methodology

Feedback Overview

Q.1: What do you think of the City of London lighting?

Q.2: What changes would you like to see in the City
of London lighting?

Q.3: What elements of lighting are important to you?

Q4: Please provide any other comments or suggestions
you might

Emerged Themes

Next Steps

Consultation response overviews:
e Online User Survey
e Postcards
 Emails
Consultation material:
e Flyer
e Interactive board
e Roller banners

e Postcards

Speirs and



Introduction

This report documents and summarises the feedback received during the
City Lighting Strategy public consultation, which took place between 22nd
January and 3rd March 2018.

The Strategy document was published and available to download in the
City of London website. The consultation was carried out through a series
of drop-in sessions open to public, user surveys and night walking tours,
engaging with local businesses, residents, workers and visitors. The

City Lighting strategy has gained widespread attention through social
media, receiving over 4,000 shares on LinkedIn; media outlets, with over
Hyfeatured articles; and the public, with a total of 79 formal responses
@m residents, workers, professionals and visitors. An evening event was
&Bo organised following the consultation to present the draft strategy
@:ument to the public. The evening featured a presentation from City of
London officers and Lighting designer Mark Major. This was followed by

a night walk around the Square Mile, which included the demonstration

of the lighting Control Management System that allows street lights to be
dimmed remotely. The event was very well attended and received positive
comments from a varied audience.

The following pages provide an overview of the City Lighting strategy
and the methods used in the public consultation. The report outlines the
feedback received throughout the consultation summarised by questions
and subsequently by key themes. This report will help to inform the next
stages of the strategy, prioritising key themes and progressing work
streams within the City Lighting Strategy.

City Lighting Strategy | 1

oM

I-.'
17

f 2
V>4

0

[/
/]

=il
L.

= A—
=

[/

74

[ ]
(7

~_ry

)

%

1

il

= s

o m—
SN

radBSTR

S
S——

S=r




City Lighting Strategy Overview

The City Lighting Strategy aims to deliver a holistic, creative and smart
approach that balances light and darkness to better define urban spaces in
the Square Mile after dark.

The strategy seeks to complement the work that is already underway to
upgrade the City’s street lighting to high quality, energy-saving and cost-
efficient LED with effective light controls. It is setting clear guidelines for a
consistent lighting approach to strengthen and enhance the character and
feel of the City’s public realm and enrich the experience of people at night.
The strategy’s objective is to provide the City with the lighting it needs in
té?ms of functionality and aesthetic, and improve the quality of life for its
f’%idents, workers and visitors, by avoiding unnecessary pollution, over-
lighting, excessive glare and inconsistencies in lighting design.

(@)

The City Lighting Strategy will support a once in a generation opportunity
for the City of London to deliver a cohesive and smarter lighting approach,
which considers the diversity of the City’'s residents, workers and visitors. It
contributes to highlight the City’s unigueness, not only as the Financial and
Business centre, but also as a historic and cultural destination.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 2

© Speirs and Major




Methodology Drop-in locations

6.
The Strategy document was published and available to 2 2
download in the City of London website prior to the start of i 1.
the consultation.

5.

The public consultation was conducted through various /.
methods, which include: drop- in sessions, night walks, 1 4. 3.

online surveys, leafleting, postcards, emails and a City
Centre talk aimed at professionals.

All surveys and postcards consistently posed the following 4
questions:

1. What do you think of the City of London lighting? L LIS 6 M
2. St Giles Cripplegate
3. Leadenhall Market
4. 0ne New Change
5. One Creechurch Place
6. Golden Lane Estate

7. St Andrew Holborn

What changes would you like to see in the City of London
hting? If possible, can you please provide location
@amples?

?What elements of lighting are important to you? (e.qg.
safety, security, accessibility, culture, sustainability, planning,
technology, etc.)

4. Please provide any other comments or suggestions you
might have below

All feedback received was collected and documented,
and the key points by questions have been summarised.
All feedback was also then analysed by themes to gather
specific understanding of the issues, concerns and
guestions that the public had.

¢ ABajens Bupyby Ao

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 3



Feedback Overview

Drop-in

Postcards )
Sessions

14 Responses

with half respondents
thinking the City Lighting .Jlj

is fit for purpose.

Total number of
responses

79

13 Responses

(.%from Associations:
@ilbert House Group,
drewes House,
Barbican Association,
Friends of City
Gardens, llluminated
river project team, City
Property Associations

75 attendees

attended the public event
on 11 April 2018 at the
City Centre

Networking Website

evening event

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 4

Online Survey

Almost half of the

Respondents*
s Resident
B
Worker

)
A
B Tourist/Visitors

K 22%

Wi
Professional 10%
Other 3%
*Respondents who chose to

disclose whether they were a
worker, visitor or resident

7 Locations
Across the City

4 Routes

through the Culture
Mile, Eastern City
cluster, Guildhall and
Fleet street area

Outreach

o Articles

* Presentations

52 Responses

* Newsletters
respondents being City

residents » Social Media

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



Drop-in sessions

A series of public drop-in sessions were held in seven
locations across the City. The purpose of the sessions was
to gather feedback on the draft Strategy, and to understand
the issues and aspirations for the City Lighting. All sessions
displayed two roller banners, an interactive board and cards
for the public to input their ideas, postcards and displayed
pictures of the current City Lighting. All material provided
during the sessions can be viewed in Appendix 5.

The sessions were strategically placed across the City
aimed at workers, visitors and residents throughout
lunchtime and night-time sessions. Lunchtime sessions
were held at Museum of London, Leadenhall Market and
One New Change. They took place from 12.00 to 14.00.
Y
%ht-time sessions took place at One Creechurch place,
Andrews Holborn and Golden Lane Estate aimed at
regidents, workers and visitors in the area. These sessions = g e 8
B8k place from 17.00 to 20.00 and included a night-time H 7] { o e N b
walk in the sourrounding area lead by City of London S = ' : T
officers, when requested by members of the public. This
walk aimed to identify current issues and opportunities of
the City of London lighting.

One Creechurch Place, 25 Jan 2018 One New Change, 12 Feb 2018

T oo

.__'
7 e

pe ¢

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 5



Press coverage and outreach

businessGreen

o o | City of London switches on
The City Lighting Strategy was able to gain international attention through . . .
social media outreach and press coverage. Press coverage included articles energy efﬁc|ent l|ght|ng strategy

from Forbes, BusinessGreen, LUX, LondonlovesBusiness, Smart Buildings
magazine, Edie, Euractive LEDs magazine.

The Strategy was also circulated and advertised through various City of LonNDON/oves BUSINESS
London networks where the strategy received feedback from professionals . . .
across the world. Smart City lighting strategy launched for
the Square Mile d_
[ City of London energy-efficient lighting plans to save

A remarkable piece of work, | am totally £500,000 a year
convinced that good design ethos is the

absolute key to delivering LED in a more

holistic fashion fit for application. You have L’! LUX
given the industry an excellent model

to consider here moving forward.

¢) abed

City of London unveils smart lighting strategy
17

Comment received by Lighting

designer during public consultation London, England

In January 2017, the City of London recently announced it will
launch a smart city lighting strategy through the City of London
Corporation. This strategy also covers remotely operated lighting
that will complement the look of historic buildings, improve

r h’] 3\ s mart FOI‘bES 1 eCll # Ch angeTheWO I‘ld energy usage and help tackle light pollution in the "Square Mile."

v~ Buildings
N

MAGAZINE

Smart city lighting strategy launched for the Square
Mile

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 6



City Centre Event

An evening event presenting the draft Lighting Strategy document was organised
by the City of London in April 2018. The event was open to the public and aimed to
complement the public consultation by gathering additional opinions and suggestions
on the current City of London lighting and the proposed strategy.

The event was held at the City Centre in the Guildhall and it included a presenta-
tion from City of London officers and lighting designer Mark Major from Speirs and
Major. The presentation aimed to give an overview on the lighting upgrade currently
being developed in the City, and the aspirations of the City following the adoption of
the City Lighting Strategy. The event was subsequently followed by a night walk (as
shown in the map) led by City’s officers, which aimed to identify current issues and
opportunities of the City of London lighting.

e event was very well attended by a variety of audience (members of public, light-
i89 professionals, architects and planning consultants, professionals in guided tours,
g). Attendees were very interested in the Control Management System (CMS) and
itg future possibilities, especially in reducing the levels of lighting in the streets. This
whas clearly expressed when a simulation on how light levels can be remotely con-
trolled was demonstrated at Moorgate.

Many attendees also expressed interest in how the Strategy will be implemented
and would welcome additional guidelines to light building facades as well as early
engagement during planning application process. This is in line with the current draft
Strategy document that recommends a Planning Guidance Note on this subject.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 7

265 Light + Darkness in the City - A Lighting Vision for the City of London
R . h .
kﬂ: Night Walk approx 45-50 mins

cITY

LONDON '
Y
i
- p -

i -
Moorgate
CMS Test

Wy

‘
e
N -~
Bank Junction

Night walking tour, 11 April 2018

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



Q1: What do you think of the City of London lighting? — = s to be reflective of

_;.;ra;wmmmﬂ sfunctional, 24-hour
Latl e T
This question focused on the current state of City lighting, intended to
highlight the current issues and challenges it faces. Overall, 36% of ‘ . ; 5.
respondents stated that the current City lighting is generally fit for purpose. G mm““'h. '

The other comments provided insight into the current issues stemming from ‘m ti u.!i_ 5‘
‘ H[\

either the lack of light or excess of light within the City.

Answers to the survey highlight the importance of creating a cohesive

and systematic approach that address the unbalance between light and
darkness, over-lighting, too bright levels of lighting, glare and inconsistency
of light throughout the streets and buildings of the City.

349, Of respondents think that the current
City lighting is fit for purpose

14% of respondents think the City is
over lit

G, abed

14% of respondents say there is
inconsistent lighting in the City

12% of respondents think the City has
many dark spaces and alleys

12% of respondents say light

pollution is a huge issue

il 4L [ E
- 6% of respondents say heritage

lighting should be preserved I

4%  of respondents think technology
is important
- 2% Respondents want more
regulation on lighting

- 2% Respondents think there is too
much glare

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 8



Q2: What changes would you like to see in the City of London

lighting? If possible, can you please provide location examples?

This question looked at elements of the City lighting that could be changed
for the better. This question intended to help inform priorities and key issues
to take forward and to identify key areas of improvement across the City
lighting.

An enhanced character of the City at night was identified as the most
important element that the City Lighting Strategy should consider . This
was outlined in the feedback by comments on specific identified areas and

22%

of respondents want technology that:

* Is movement-responsive and allow for
lighting reduction when nobody is present
» Can help avoid blue-white light or

places (see map on the following page). The specific places were mentioned high lighting levels

for various reasons related to their character: it was asked to preserve
historical features including gas lighting and original light fittings; install more
welcoming light including low level lighting and mood lighting; and to enhance
the overall architectural elements of the spaces at night. Overall the following
tb@mes were raised in the answers:

16%

of respondents want planning and
regulation on:

9,/ obe

e Curfews of lights in residential and
suburban areas

» Commerical and offiice blocks to
regulate their lights at night

30%

of respondents want more enhanced

character at night with better lighting, this
includes:

» Appropriate lighting of historic buildings
including conserving gas lighting and
heritage lanterns

* Reduce lighting levels and warmer
colours in areas of historic interest

» Better lighting design on monuments and
churches

11%

of respondents want to see less light
pollution and protection for wildlife
at night

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 9



Areas in need of improvement

1New Change

5 Broadgate

20 Fenchurch

21 Moorfields
Charterhouse square
City Inns around Temple
City Point

Gough Square
Guildhall yard

London Wall place
Milton Street

12 Moor lane

13 Silk street

14 Tower Hotel

15 Wood Street

16 Fore Street

17 Beech Street gardens

© 0ONO O hOWODN =

Reconimendations:

18 125 London Wall

19 Barbican estate high walks
20 Barbican Estate

21 Beech Street

22 End of Fleet Street nearest to

St Paul’s Cathedral

23 Fenchurch and Leadenhall Street

24 Leadenhall Market
25 Temple Inn
26 Mansion House

27 Narrow alleys around Cornhill

28 st Giles’ Cripplegate church
29 St Paul’s Cathedral
30 Riverside

13
\ 2,
@
Q
S |
Vs
< 5
> f— = T g
/]
o
AN N ‘ EL y <
8 = €
z ° P
o B‘%aﬁlu
° ““%0" o)
s w )
i}
L—
E | [H }—;L R 7 —
E =
E r
il
b=
L — |

Places that were mentioned in the feedback as as areas
in need of improvement included the following com-
ments:

. Over lighting in office blocks

. Light pollution

. Dark areas and alleys

. Incorrect lighting levels and colour temperature

O

GES)

Places that were mentioned in the feedback with
recommendations included:

Buildings that can be retrofitted with smart
technology

Adjust and add more welcoming lighting levels and
colour temperature

All City gardens and churches to be considered in a
holistic, cohesive and collective way

Buildings and lights with needed repairs and
maintenance

Gas lanterns and heritage light posts that should
not be changed



Q3: What elements of lighting are important to you? (e.g. safety, security,

accessibility, culture, sustainability, planning, technology, etc.)

Respondents were asked to list elements of lighting that is most important to
them. The aim of this question was to identify and align the priorities within the
strategy to the priorities of the public. Both sustainability and safety were the
most important to respondents followed by culture, security and technology.

4% of respondents stated all of the above are important elements of lighting while
1% stated none are important.

3% of respondents mentioned health being an important aspect of lighting. This
was highlighted in regards to the impact of light on human health and wellbeing.
Residents heavily stressed the importance of this element and its affects to their
circadian rhythm, night-time sleep and overall wellbeing.

27%
26%

g, obed

18%

8% 8%

0 3% 30 4

All of the
above

Accessibility

&

Planning Technology

r]j[j

Management

%

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 11



Q4 : Please provide any other comments or suggestions

you might have below:

This was an open-ended question that allowed respondents to address any
outstanding comments on the City lighting. Many respondents suggested creative
options for lighting that would enable more progressive and innovative lighting
design throughout the City.

Further comments included the impact of light on health, management, character (( ))
areas and the environment.

2 6% of respondents provided technological

recommendations on lighting levels, color

temperature and specific tech features that can
;DU provide economical and sustainable solutions
«Q to the City. This included suggestions such
C\Dl as using lamps without short wavelengths
i 0 of respondents suggested creative ggrggoKnl_en;tl_n them and ?dﬁft aI maximum of
1 A) avenues of lighting that the City should ighting (warmer light colour).

investigate. This included:

. Project mapping for wayfinding

. Small lighting sculpture projections

. A City light festival

. [llumination of public artworks

20% of respondents commented on the need for

more regulations on planning applications,
particularly regarding office blocks and
infrastructures emission of light and its
management.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 12



Emerged themes

Issues and aspirations raised by the public throughout the consultation period
are summarised in the key themes below, which have been identified in the
comments received through all the channels mentioned in page 3 of this
report. These priorities largely resonate with the key themes and character
areas identified in the current version of the Strategy. The following findings
and highlighted themes will be given particular consideration when progressing
the next steps for the City Lighting Strategy.

Safety and Security

Respondents have observed throughout the City the need for a balanced
approach to lighting in response to safety and security. Comments highlighted
the use of light in deterring crime, the problematic approach of using bright
light that could attract crime and the importance of light when an incident
gurs. The balance between lightness and darkness was also mentioned in

viding a safe route when accessing places at night.
@

©
lazonsistency

There is a consensus that there is inconsistency and lack of uniformity across
City lighting. This was highlighted throughout the feedback by over lighting and
need for more lighting in specific areas. This inconsistency was observed in
the design, mounting height, strength and purpose of lighting throughout the
City.

Planning

Respondents highlighted the need to better regulate and integrate planning
into the new City lighting approach. This included:

. A more embedded and considered policy with lighting that
would help mitigate and provide guidance on light pollution,
glare and power usage throughout the City.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 13

. Guildelines on the emission of light from office block at night,
and the need to seek better control of the brightness of
illuminated media signs.

. Incorporating planning conditions for developments to
include motion sensor technology and blinds' usage.

. Partnerships with local developers to create a standard for
sustainable usages of light for commercial buildings.

. Understanding of current best practices of newly

refurbished buildings and recognize the necessity of lights
in office buildings at night for extended working hours as well as
to support night-time economy.

Feedbacks also considered the need to focus planning on areas that
include emerging lighting technology, lighting infrastructure management
costs, and to recognise the impact on the population of future City
lighting upgrades.

Character areas

In general, there is strong support for improving and highlighting
historical monuments, buildings and character areas throughout the City
with light.

Heritage lighting such as traditional fixtures and gas lighting is highly
desirable to respondents as it emits character to historic buildings and
the area; it was suggested that they should be kept and be enhanced.
The colour and ambiance of gas lighting should be reflected in all new
lighting upgrades in and around historic monuments such as St. Paul’s
Cathedral, St Giles Cripplegate and Mansion House as well as historic
alleys such as in the Temple area.

It was recommended that the architecture of both historic and modern
buildings could be highly celebrated using up lighting and warm
lighting levels (lower than 4000K). However, appropriate applications

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



- - - g

S

|

|

of light should be considered in residential areas, historic districts and open i
spaces. There is a need to have a coordinated approach whereby ecological L — b | ="'\"|
assessments and consultation with residents should be in place. < !& -

\‘ )

Good design ethos was also mentioned as a crucial process in supporting the l

look and feel of spaces when delivering such an extensive LED upgrade.

A comment was raised about the Culture Mile character area within the
strategy document to include the presence of the Barbican residential estate i =
and emphasising the need to respect residents at night, by reducing and
avoiding unnecessary and intrusive artificial light at night.

Technology and Innovations

'@ere is a great number of responses that encourage energy efficient
tezhnology that calculate energy and CO2 reduction, reduce energy

WRiste and increase longevity in LED, which also decrease maintenance {

uirements. Respondents recommended the options of using motion - 1
responsive lighting that is controlled by footfall/traffic during peak/off -n
peak hours. This was highly favourable in conservation, residential and —
commercial areas that could reduce light pollution and environmental/
health effects caused by artificial light at night.

AN AT -~ 1A3ageneneS

Respondents supported the upgrade of old lighting types to LED with I
consideration of not using blue-white light, adopting a 3000K max and

minimizing the use of harsh lighting at 4000k (whiter light). With the

upgrade to LED, there is a need to continue to preserve the ambiance of

areas using warm street lighting and conserving heritage lighting features

when possible.

© Speirs and Major




Emerged themes

Light Pollution

There was a strong theme that emerged regarding light pollution in the City.
This is a significant issue raised by both residents and workers highlighting the
effects of light pollution coming from commercial properties, tall office blocks
and signages. Light pollution has been raised as both an environmental and
public health concern impacting wildlife and public wellbeing. A strong and
innovative approach to reduce light pollution has been proposed with various
considerations including innovative technology, planning regulations on night-
time light usage and the implementation of blinds on commercial properties.
An integrated approach with both internal and external stakeholders is
encouraged to mitigate and improve light pollution efficiently and effectively
across the City. More details on the type of issues and recommendation
proposed were identified in the theme of Environment and Sustainability

EDGIOW.

LHQ>f1vironment/Sustainability

00

h‘?espondents are in support of a more sustainable approach to City lighting
that reduces light pollution, minimises the urban heat island thermal footprint
and diminishes sky glow. There was a large number of respondents that
wanted to reduce artifical light at night to reduce light pollution, encourage
wildlife to flourish and to minimise the adverse health effects to LED lights.

Wildlife

There was a huge number of respondents that recognised the
importance of lighting and its effects on wildlife and native species
within the City. Comments to maintain biodiversity of wildlife and
encourage native species to remain in open spaces included

using warm white (yellow) colour in and around conservation
areas, encourage low-lighting in green spaces and using LED and
electronic device ‘night time’ settings to reduce blue light exposure.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 15

Human Health

There was great concern and feedback on the impact of lighting to
human health and wellbeing. Respondents feedback included using the
appropriate forms of light around residential areas that acknowledge
the mental, physical and stress response to levels of light at night.
Suggestions included using amber lighting instead of blue-white LED
light and to consider height levels and glare from up lighting into
residential homes.

Overall, respondents agree with the use of lighting design that recognizes
the social and environmental affects to wildlife and its citizens. There
should at all cost be a coherent strategy in place to mitigate impacts of
light on the ecology and wellbeing of citizens in the City.

Culture

Overall, culture was highlighted multiple times, suggesting that a creative
and innovative lighting approach should be consider when highlighting
architectural features, soft landscaping and wayfinding. Some examples
referenced are projection mapping, light installations and temporary
lighting during filming and short term activities.

Night-time Economy

Respondents highlighted the use of appropriate lighting that
helps interpret history and promote night-time tourism. Balancing
the need of a night time economy in the City whilst maintaining

it as an area for residents is something to consider when going
forward.

There is a need for a careful approach to the balance of light/darkness in
residential areas especially with the use of cultural lighting in the Culture
Mile. There should be a conservative effort when lighting significant set of
buildings and residential estates to maintain the original ambiance of the
area while being explorative in lighting design.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo



A\ AW\ Y
Famra

Communication and Stakeholder engagement
There were several comments related to communication and how the R T
strategy should be taken forward in the future. Many residents and 3 *
professionals would like an opportunity to be a part of early stakeholder L
engagement in future lighting projects: this includes providing more input =y
into design, lighting levels decisions and support for additional lighting = :\}b
policies. Some of the responses received by groups and associations i
commented upon the lack of engagement prior to the strategy being E_. R Foi
drafted. e

Management

ring the public consultation's open drop in sessions as well as at
the evening event organised at the City Centre, questions were raised

stem and how this would be co-ordinated by the City of London.
w
Comments received during the public consultation were also suggesting
the need for the City to consider the rapid innovative evolution of LED
and emerging lighting technology, by implementing lighting product
lifecycle impact assessment and disposal intervention for recycle. "

%arding the control and management of the new Control Management

.

© Speirs and Major




. PRRLLS o ok
- ” “ ’. L .:\.::-;h:
.-“‘-‘ L] - ‘.".. - “b-',“'--.
Next Steps - i Sasss"n ,‘_'{.,‘....:&.-,:
':‘T.- - o« K ‘.: -._.‘_t:.;.?:‘-;.‘__‘
S, e .- "‘.!;‘---i-‘
- T L et r o > b
E_g * "' -u;:.".. :i‘,’ . ey
Strategy Document =30 BT o S, Y
Following this report, the strategy will be updated in light of the comments ;:;r“t - . Wit o "R n::
and recommendations received. This will then be submitted to the City of -l .. f"“;,_-_?j*f" ® :'4’- :::3‘.._ -
London Commettes for final adoption in late Summer 2018. If the Strategy is g ". b 0 R (s
adopted, the document will become a guideline framework for future lighting - % ﬂ. :’ .“'.'.-.; .
proposals and project delivered within the City of London. i '-’:t,:'_;:. -
. & L. Po
Further stakeholders engagement e & -:;«".'-.
Before the strategy is finalised, additional stakeholders’ meetings will ; -{,.::.',-_;"..’
be held to ensure the document’s recommendations are balanced and \ 'b_‘;‘:}:
comprehensive of the different needs and requirements in the Square Mile. . 1 1‘;‘ -
- P = [ ™
| S \

@icy and Planning
e of the main recommendation of the Strategy is the creation of a set of

d®delines for lighting buildings within the Square Mile. While the strategy
i€Being finalised, initial assessments will be carried out to consider the

feasibility of the creation of this planning document and interrogate both
internal and external stakeholders on the benefits and disbenefits of such a
planning guidance note. . g -

The City of London Local plan is currently being reviewed and some of . E
its policies will endeavour to include recommendations of the strategy -=
document. The Local Plan will be reviewed in Summer 2018 and a draft - -

document will be proposed for wider public consultation in September 2018.

LED Upgrade and Control Management System (CMS)

In line with the draft Strategy, the City of London has initiated the replacing
of its ageing stock street lighting, with new LED luminaires utilising a central
Control Management System (CMS), which will in turn lead towards large
energy and maintenance savings.

The new CMS is currenlty being tested and will provide a mesh network

City Lighting Strategy | 17




that allows the City to control the lights from a central location. It will consent
to profile the lighting levels for each lantern within the City, allowing for better
control during the night and greater energy savings.

Management

Following some of the initial recommendations from the draft strategy
document, it was deemed necessary to initiate an internal management
framework that can support the delivery of the strategy proposals. Initial
engagement with the relevant internal stakeholders is being carried out to
prepare for a future Strategic Lighting Board that could represent a consultation
forum for future lighting proposals.

Gg abed

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

City Lighting Strategy | 18




Appendix

Consultation response overviews:

Online User Survey
Postcards
Emails

Consultation material:

Flyer

Interactive board
Roller banners
Postcards




Appendix 1- Online user survey

Question 1
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
= ] m B
X
S ’b\\& < ,b@ OC’Q/ \}QQO & ;\’\0(\ ,.OQQO ;000 «?}\’Q
U © K ) 2 NS & @
9 & S O & &
% Q\&‘\ RN N \';Q &
o

words: Glare, purpose, Health, excessive, dark, particular, lighting, incon-
tent, lit, overall

Question 2

25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

N\ N . < o X

g Q} <0 ((‘Q'Q Q/’Z}& rz} d Q\ ’boc «QJ(, O’&Q/

Q)Q‘} N & Ny & Q@ &
\QQ & K’b(’ ,b\(\
<& &2 W

Key words: Existing Lighting Think Making Pollution Residential Bright Guildhall

Fails to Mention Lamp London Wall Place LEDs Outdoor Lighting Street Office

Blocks Lit Avoid Level Cultural Amount Strategy Bedroom Commercial Buildings

Total number of respondents: 52

City resident 48.98%
City worker  24.49%
Visitor / Tourist to the City 26.53%

Question 3
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
o N n i _ | - -
2 2 N < 2z & Q QA A N g <
\004 & eq}\ /bée ,b(\o é\\o %\Q’} 0& S ,\é‘ %o O,;&
be » ‘2\ é .&Q}\ O S c)é" .(\’b
& > R @
\é\ L \} (,)&
N\ <9
el \2‘\\‘1

Key words: Culture, Colour Temperature, Important, Light Pollution, Security,
London Safety, Planning, Technology, Safe, Energy, Dark

Question 4
45%
40%

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10% I I I
5% I l
0% HE E =
& & & ) x

2 < &
Q N x2' N RS
& N Qgﬁb & OQQf‘ N Q}(\(\\ & <
¢ \'\\\o C(‘% < S
<& &
X
N

Key words: Driver, Public, Ambience, Places, Space, Focus, CCT, Interests,
LEDs, Strategy, New Lights, Lamps, Short, Little, Dark, Poor, Reduce



Appendix 2- Postcard Responses

Question 1

70%

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
H EH B
Fit for purpose Dark Character Area Overlit

Fit for purpose- well maintained

Dark- areas not well lit

CBaracter areas- ensure historic buildings look beautiful at night
@/erlit— wasteful, empty office blocks lit up like xmas trees

®

estion 2

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%
SERRERE
0%

Culture Betterlit Enviroment Character Innovation Regulation Tech
area

Culture- creative lighting around Barbican

Better lit- reduce light levels, extreme bright floodlights
Environment- protection for wildlife, light pollution, urban heat island
Character areas- wasteful, empty office blocks lit up like xmas trees
Innovation- pavegen lighting

Regulation - commerial regulation, curfews, turn lights off

Tech- movement responsive lighting, blue white light

Total number of respondents: 14

Question 3

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
, MW =

All Culture Sustainablilty Safety Accessibility

Security

Culture- definining our historical monuments, ambience, creativity

Sustainability- not wasting energy,

Safety- main concern, safety first

Accessibility- helping people find their way around
Security

Question 4
3.5
3
2.5
2
1.5
1
0
Security Regulation Sustainability Creativity Character area

Security- definining our historical monuments, ambience, creativity

Regulation- office blocks on all night, need regulation
Sustainablity- lighting using solar power

Creativity- Led lamps to be used for more creative lighting

Character area- historical focus on buildings



Appendix 3- Email Responses Total number of respondents: 13
Resident- 1

Worker- 2
7 Assocation responses Professional- 2

Gilbert House Group
Andrewes House

Barbican Association

Friends of City Gardens
llluminated river project team
City Property Associations

Final comments: Create lighting uniformity along the riverside along with the restoration of existing
We are supportive of anything which enhances the City and provides a safe environment and we are compenents of the riverside lighting such as the iconic Sturgeon Lights.
in agreement with much of what the strateqy proposes. Unclear on the status of any final report
PA
klght poll verlightin Eriends of City Gardens =

«  Light polition s a significant issue which impacts residents' ives, provides near daylight Dark The CPA ftl::'s"f:ppons mer?‘o*gﬁlg“ ofa L{'Q“""'Q Strategy for the Square Mile and the CPA

considers that there is much in rate: 0 comme

. :ighrtltng c;ﬁ';':;i‘;::;?::gﬁ:‘;fflm ::Zlg:;n oy ththe G * Preserving dark areas in parks and gardens- increasing lighting levels in these areas could e

19! ':%t Pl Ine aiscand i m; + hameto ot nolkiioa e cvard] :’t' ty affect the ability of bats to move around the City. The impact of this should be assessed Engagement/Management
mad pasacin Mg -lighting before any changes are made- does not appear 1o be a mechanism for this in the Strategy.

«  Light spill from commercial properties to residents’ flats, this can be solved wilh sensor «  CPA has not had an opportunity to take part of early stakeholder engagement Seek the
confrols; avoid monitors, tv screens and screensavers near windows, Occupiers should be Character apportunity of further engagement with the City on the production of mare detailed pranning
guided to lower blinds after 7.00pm ) « Architectural lighting of buildings may adversely impact the ability of bats to access roosts policy and guidance that is envisaged as a result of the production of the Lighting Strategy.

* Would support a strong and innovative approach to reducing light poliution, working »  Full ecological assessment needs to be made when additional lighting of historic buildings to i . .
ﬂﬁlcally with the Mayor of London ot affect animal habitat b ity in lysi

w Sustainabilit . :r:;née‘;n?)(;r:;qw analysis creates a degree of subjectivity to the assessment of lighting in

. pointed that in the list of stakehaolders with whom the lighting consultants engaged « Pleased on the strategy to recognize the importance of not disturbing rocsting birds by . .

nits do not appear to feature, little reference to the needs of residents additional lighting of trees Fiage 2 two Tetall pracedent Images are Uaed to:highiight “well Blorrinated rotes
N reinforce pedestrian movements®, yet elsewhere (p.33 and p.103), retail frontages are
. me being consulted with immediately adjacent to the Barbican Estate and of the * Support measures to improve sustainability by reducing carbon emissions through reduced highlighted for “excessive light still to pavement” and "shop floor lights operational out
Highwalks and garden spaces - in relation to lighting levels, peak and off peak times. energy consumplion orgmus' ) g
Charact Light Pollution Page 17, states “over-illumination of passageways result in areas of high contrast”,
: " ——— R . . ol however passageways often need to be highly illuminated to deter anti-social
welcome proactive measures to reduce the amount of light spillage and glare frem commercial

«  Culture Mile- report does not refer to the whale Barbican residential estate. Inappropriate = bunldinggras it is & hezard for migrating birds that fiy atgnlgh?‘ g gk behaviour and rough sleeping

applications of light displays and projections on the external surfaces of the estate. The Plannin
oposed lighting of Beech Gardens is an intrusion of light into home ervironments and Planning
gco?ystem.g ? é NMuminated River Project Team » Sections 2 and 3 also highlight the adverse impact of commercial buikdings having their lights

left on when empty, however the strategy needs to acknowledge that international and

«  Highlighting of bridges- Wood and fore Street would be an intrusion into residents’ flats vistiomal G par e work T il Hght
into fi

« Barbican- i lost within the Culture Mile. Needs to be looked at separately as an residential The vision document has a very clear aim, set out in a way that is both informative and aspirational P
area. Deserves protection from light poliution and protection of dark area. The lighting design We support wholeheartedly the balanced approach to meeting funetional and aesthetic lighting +  Allnew and refrbished office buildings are fitted with PIR LED mation senor lighting
designed by the original architects manages light well- should remain as the existing. Agree needs in the City. * support good practice guidelines of lighting office main entrances and receptiosn as
that to illuminate openings but leave the boundaries themsetves dark mentioned on page 20, however it is important that any such guidance takes a pragmatic
: Leo Villareal has provided the following feedback: “The Lighting Vision for the City of London is fepopé;al::;“ office developments, and particularly in respect of their main entrances and
Hight-time economy roack ancs Mos!
$rspinng in NS senelive epproach to Laiancing ihe uss of ightin Urban coriiexls. Most pacple [ake «  support the Strategy's desire to seek better contral over the brightness of iluminated signs
+  Residents have a right to a peaceful life so this needs balancing with the needs of residents. 490 for granked erd are. nol aivans of ASOICUNG Tpact oo cur daly fives. T Gy, o London s and media screens
«  The illumination of open spaces near residents’ flats, as already facing a growing number of vision makes abundantly clear why a new approach is needed and will lead to significant «  supports the cument policy of mounting street lights/ lantems on building facades but need to
people spilling out onto Fore and Wood Streets and on the highwalks imprevemant in the use of ilumination in Londen and bayond. be realistic and incorporated into the design
»  CPA would however wish to be kept informed of and be party to the formation of draft
Sustainability mw . planning policy which we understand is expected to be part of a separate study as referred to
« Agree with the recognition of the social and environmental effects of good lighting design * Appropriate lighting that help interpret history and promote night-time tourism on page 40 of the Strategy
Cults » concemned that “adherence” to all of the recommendations in the report is neither realistic nor
O sl naturs ofthe Bartiosn as both & set of buiidings and a estate Flanning Lo
- il i
. + Embed lighting more coherently into the planning process, lighting could be mare deeply * acknowiedge that better education may be required amongst owners and developers, but the
ol enshrined within policy. Strategy is full of examples of recent developments setting out good or best practice in

respect of their lighting strategies, this needs to be acknowledged in the strategy.

* Proposed Strategic Lighting Board would be a way to bring together public and private
+  Improved lighting of residential areas sectors to support the management and delivery of the strategy.
« The City should make it a condition of a planning application that building owners and users
adhere to good practice standards with regards to ighting

Culture
+  The City should adopt more gavernment guidance on light poliution Caredul approsct lo'cLiral lighting, appropriately belanceaithe anount of, Rght and colotr, applya

« The fitting of blinds should be a strict planning conition together with a regime for them being similar approach to temporary lighting
closed by Spm
*  Arule that all lights to shops and offices are switched off at night as they have in other Character
European cities? « Riverside- welcome the requirement to consider the outcome of the Iluminated River in any

re-lighting of the Riverside Walk area
Coordinated approach with bridge landing points at the river banks




Appendix 4- Consultation material

Consultation flyer

Join us for a public consultation on the first City Lighting Strategy

The Vision
The City Lighting Strategy seeks to deliver a holistic, creative, and smart
approach in which light and darkness are better balanced. It aims to meet
both the functional and aesthetic needs of the City of London.
The consultation will be open from
Monday 22 January 2018 until Friday 2 March 2018
A series of drop in sessions will be held in various locations in the City of London
where officers will be available to provide information on the document and answer
questions from the public. Evening sessions will be followed by walking tours
which explore current challenges and opportunities of the City of London lighting.
The tours will depart from the drop-in sessions locations at the below times.
Lunch Sessions
Date Location Time
23Jan  Museum of London, Reception 12pm-2pm
12pm-2pm
12pm-2pm

30Jan  StGiles Cripplegate Church, Barbican
9Feb  Leadenhall Market

12Feb  One New Change, Shopping Centre
Ground Level

Evening Sessions
Date Location ime

12pm-2pm

25Jan  One Creechurch Place, Reception ~ 5pm-7pm  7pm-8pm

6Feb  Golden Lane Estate, 4pm-7pm  7pm-8pm
Sir Ralph Perring Centre

20Feb  StAndrew Holborn 4pm-7pm  7pm-8pm

For more information about the City Lighting Strategy, to download a copy

of the document, and to respond to the consulation survey visit:

www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/citylightingstrategy

Or contact;

CityLightingStrategy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

P
(@)
(b

e

@©

S

)

7))

(@)
c
—
L
D
—

>
5=

@)

LONDON

Photograph ©.Jason Havke:

© © 0 © 0 0 000000 00000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 000000000 00000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 00000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000 00

City Lighting Strategy | 23

Interactive board

G

e ———TE

Functional )

These recommendations ensure the new lighting approach provides
a safe, secure and accessible environment for all.

Safety Security

A

Environmental

This set of guidelines provides a sustainable approach that balances the
economic, environmental and social impact of lighting, and considers
how lighting can play a key role in the cultural development of the City
of London at night.

Planning

ol
N

to manage street lighting,
Strategic Lighting Board, and
tachnologi

encouraging the use of smarter

Comeqerees o e e tourim nthe Cit of London.

ngeing managment
nd ivestment

Interactive board cards




Appendix 5- Consultation material

Roller banner- The Vision Roller banner- Enhancing
Character areas Bike Cart

Enhancing character areas through light and darkness

One of the key recommendations of this strategy is to use
light and darkness to enhance the distinct character areas

that make up the City of London. Ty
LonboN

The Vision

The City Lighting Strategy seeks to deliver a holistic,
creative and smart approach in which light and darkness
are better balanced. It aims to meet both the functional Ty
and aesthetic needs of the City of London. LoNDON
Key lighting issues in the City of London Identified CharacterAreas|
B . The strategy identifies 12 character areas
within the City of London, each with
distinctive attributes creati
llighting proposals to open
buildings, landscaped a

his will highlight the unique herit

that define their in

e —— T )

Technical recommendations proposed in the strategy « s o s o rvenc e o i oo s o ey

Bank Junction

Postcard

How should the City be lit? We want to hear from you

- A P . In order ko develop projects that meet the needs of
City Lighting Strategy Public Consultation the cammunily, wit want 1o hear your views

P The City Lighting Strateqy
sooks to deliver a h i
creative and Smart approach
n which light and darkness

are better balanced. it aims
st

Al

el

D)
(@)}
o}
+—
@®
p—
)
7))
o)
-
=
e
(=2

L

1t

earbe provice ar

Please submit your comments by emailing us at:

citylightingstrategy@cityofiondon.gov.uk citylightingstrategy@cityoflondon.gov.uk SEPUY SERACE

B
- Licerce o LOMYLI
[

OLDY,COm ing an OnAGE STV, oL G Weloke W or by completing an online survey on our website:
www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/citylightingstrategy Lonbon o nyflondon govakicyohtingstratedy N

© © 0 © 0 0 000000 00000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 000000000 00000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 00000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000 00

City Lighting Strategy | 24



If you have any comments or feedback you
feel was not covered in this report, please
emalil citylightingstrategy@cityoflondon.
gov.uk.




e obed

Appendix 2: City Lighting Strategy amendments table

Draft version

Finalised Strategy

Rationale for change

General note — recommendations wording has often been
redrafted, to make the text clearer. These are not changes
to the content of the recommendations, but slight
amendments to the way the text is written.

Some of the City Lighting Strategy principles and main messages were not
clearly understood by the public during public consultation.

Process

Additional meetings were arranged with City Property
Association (CPA) and City of London Police

To respond to the requests for further engagement received during public
consultation.

Executive Summary 0.0

Vision was shortened and simplified.
Reference to Smarter Cities was corrected.

Reference to Corporate aim and objectives was added,
together with the ways the City Lighting Strategy is meeting
the Corporate outcomes.

Rewording of key opportunity’s section related to upgrade
of contemporary and heritage lanterns

Planning recommendations updated

Delivery section added to executive summary chapter

Recommendations changed to bold and with grey box to
ensure they are highly visible

For Clarity and comprehension.
To reflect the changes to the Corporate Smarter City Programme

To reflect the alignment of the Strategy document to the Corporate aims

To clarify the approach by the City of London of not planning to replace
historic gas mantles

To clarify the aim of a future planning guidance document and emphasise
the commitment by the City of London to promote best practice to reduce
light pollution.

Draft version did not reflect the delivery section in the executive summary
chapter

For Clarity

Introduction 1.0

Reference to Corporate aim and objectives was added,
together with the ways the City Lighting Strategy is meeting
the Corporate outcomes.

Change of section title from briefing process to briefing
process and consultation with section on public
consultation added.

Top right image of page 21 changed to provide a better
example

Update of Subheadings number

To reflect the alignment of the Strategy to the Corporate aims

To inform on the consultation process and its results

To respond to CPA comments and provide a clearer example of over-
illumination.

For clarity (previously incorrect)




76 obed

Amendment of section: ‘Consideration should be given to
mounting fittings at a more human scale,

WHEN POSSIBLE, as part of any move to upgrade the public
lighting systems to LED’

Signs and Signals — reference to enforcement has been
removed

Mounting height will not be reviewed through the LED upgrade. However,
when possible, liaison will be attempted with building owners to facilitate
the alignment of mounting height to the Strategy recommendations.

City of London does not have enforcement power regarding signs and signals
but can promote better practice through communication with its
stakeholders.

Vision 3.0

Vision was shortened and simplified.

Reference to Smarter Cities was corrected.

Centre bottom photo replaced as per CPA comments (p. 33)

For Clarity and comprehension.

To reflect the changes to the Corporate Smarter City Programme

To respond to comments received by CPA

Key Recommendations
4.1.

Security

Accessibility

Recommendations in bold and with grey box to ensure they
are highly visible

Addition of reference to vulnerable areas that require
consultation with ColL police and note that lighting can help
deter crime

Consideration of needs of people with sensory/
neurological processing difficulties was added

For Clarity

Following further engagement with COL police

To reflect comments received during public consultation.

Environmental

Culture

Management

Delivery

Note of light pollution in text and recommendations

Note added in text and recommendations ‘Removal of light
fittings where appropriate’
Note included regarding pilot program in Culture Mile

Recommendation included to update the CPR technical
Manual to include section on lighting luminaires standards.
Replacement of street and amenity lighting:
- Note to retain historic gas light
- Note on mounting height changes when feasible
and agreed with building owners
Improvements to illumination of public realm:
- Addition of proposal for St. Paul’s Cathedral
lighting scheme
- Addition of note regarding section 106 initiatives
Implementation of improved planning guidance:

To emphasise the need of reducing light pollution in response to comments
received during public consultation

To ensure the City of London will reduce and remove street lighting if not
necessary

To reflect the proposals of the Culture Mile Look and Feel Strategy

To provide the necessary information to external stakeholders.

To provide further details on specific implementation projects derived by the
Strategy’s recommendations.

To reflect the comments received during the engagement sessions the drop-
in sessions during public consultation.




G6 obed

- Section reviewed to provide further details on
future planning guidance

Lighting Standards 4.2.

Lighting level, colour temperature and mounting heights
maps updated to reflect the proposed new transport
strategy road hierarchy

Addition of timings table to show peak/off-peak/night
hours proposed

Addition of night scene

Addition of route typology and classification definition

Additional of new lighting level added in the Criteria

Addition of note below lighting levels map regarding the
road classification

Criteria themes to decide upon colour temperature of a
route have been recommended in the text with a reference
note under the Colour temperature map.

Addition of note below lighting colours map regarding the
road classification

To align with the future Transport strategy road hierarchy

To ensure the clarity over the different times of the day and provide
approximate hours range.

To respond to concerns regarding the need of a timing range during night
time that requires minimal level of lighting

To align with Local plan policies and future Transport strategy

To respond to the need from residents and Environmental Health team
regarding the need of having lower levels of light during night time.

To ensure the levels provided in the map follow the changes in the City of
London ‘s road classification and uses (Eg. Bank’s Junction)

To ensure implementation of the colour of light require for each route is not
solely informed by the provided map and Character area recommendation.

To ensure the lighting colour temperature criteria provided in the map follow
the changes in the City of London ‘s road classification and uses (Eg. Bank’s
Junction)

Character Areas 4.3

Temples
Annotation below images, text and sketch annotations

updated to clarify the approach to historic gas mantle lights
St. Paul’s and Carter Lane

Addition of the need of upgrading St Paul’s Cathedral
lighting

Culture Mile

Addition of residential community within the Culture Mile
area with additional recommendation to ensure lighting
doesn’t negatively impact on residents or residential area.

To respond to concerns about historic gas mantle lights being replaced by
LED sources.

To respond to comments received about the need of illuminating building of
historic importance and churches

To respond to residents’ comments.




96 abed

Addition of consideration of lighting levels around Crossrail
station.

Long Lane Sketch view amended to reduce levels of
colourful lighting and enhanced architecture lighting
instead

Precedents images amended

Image from Beech Street tunnel lighting event added
Additional recommendation on the need for event lighting

to consider and respect residential areas and ensure there
is no negative impact on residents.

To ensure Crossrail station opening is recognised in the Culture Mile
Character area.

To respond to comments received by residents on the need to maintain the
lighting colour neutral during typical evenings.

To demonstrate the temporary event mode with a precedent photo

To respond to comments received by residents

Cheapside + Guildhall

Addition in text about the need of switching off / dimming
any tree’s up light to reduce negative impact on ecology
and reduce light pollution

To respond to concerns from open spaces about negative impacts of lighting
trees and plants

Bank
Additional note regarding future changes to Bank and
adjustment of light levels and colour temperature

To align with the future Transport strategy objectives

Middlesex street
Additional text regarding Petticoat Lane Market and its
enhancement project

To ensure such an important proposal is considered when addressing the
lighting in the area.

Eastern City Cluster

Colour temperature aspirations changed to a warmer white
colour in the area

Aldgate Square

Addition of recommendation regarding the new public
square + addition of precedent photo of Square lighting

Riverside Walk
Additional sketch and section added to the Character area

To provide the area with the correct ambience light, considering the spillage
already deriving by the area’s glass buildings.

To ensure the new square is considered when addressing the lighting in the
area.

To emphases the importance of the Riverside Area in the future, it was felt
important to reflect future possible proposals and potential in the area.

Appendix A.0

Update of maps and transport strategy map has been
added as reference

Top right image of page 109 changed to provide a better
example

To reflect what has been used as reference mappings

To respond to CPA comments and provide a clearer example of over
illumination.




Agenda Item 9

Committee(s) Dated:

Streets and Walkways Sub Committee — For comment | 4 September 2018

Planning and Transportation — For decision 11 September 2018
Subject: Public
Dockless Cycle Hire Review
Report of: Streets and Walkways
Carolyn Dwyer, Director of the Built Environment — For comment
Report author: Planning and
Bruce McVean, Department of the Built Environment Transportation - For
decision
Summary

Dockless cycle hire has been operating in London since autumn 2017, with
operations based in several boroughs, including four that neighbour the City of
London — Camden, Hackney, Islington and Southwark.

In accordance with current policy (adopted in October 2017), the City Corporation
has arrangements in place with two operators - ofo and Mobike. Both operators have
agreed not to place bikes directly on City streets, but users can end rides in the City
and those bikes are then available for onward hire. These arrangements are
voluntary; dockless cycle hire schemes do not require the express consent of the
City Corporation to operate on City streets.

In recognition of the lack of regulatory powers available to local authorities, London
Councils are exploring the potential for a London-wide byelaw that would enable the
City Corporation and boroughs to licence dockless cycle hire operators.

This report proposes that the current policy on dockless cycle hire be continued until
the City of London Transport Strategy is adopted early next year, at which point the
policy will be reviewed and updated. The report also proposes adopting additional
measures to improve the management of dockless cycle hire, including Street
Environment Officers proactively removing bikes in accordance with the City
Corporation’s Street obstruction policy.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to approve:

e The continuation of the current dockless cycle hire policy until the Transport
Strategy is adopted and the policy updated accordingly.

e The adoption of additional management measures for dockless cycle hire
operations during this period.

e Support to London Councils in their review of the potential for a London-wide
byelaw to regulate dockless cycle hire.

Page 97



Main Report

Background

1.

‘Dockless cycle hire’ is a generic term for a short-term cycle hire scheme, similar
to Santander Cycles, but with no on-street docking infrastructure. The schemes
are commercially operated and do not require any public funding or subsidy.

The fact that no on-street docking infrastructure is required offers users more
flexibility and avoids the risk of not being able to end a ride due to a docking
station being full. It also represents a challenge, as users of dockless cycle hire
can leave bikes anywhere, potentially obstructing pavements.

Two operators (ofo and Mobike) have launched operations in boroughs that
neighbour the City of London — Camden (ofo), Hackney (ofo), Islington (ofo and
Mobike) and Southwark (ofo and Mobike). It is expected that both operators will
expand operations to other neighbouring boroughs in the near future.

In October 2017, Members of the Planning and Transportation Committee agreed
to adopt a policy on dockless cycle hire operations within the Square Mile (see
Appendix 1 and background papers). The policy allows dockless cycle hire to
operate on City streets subject to conditions. These include adherence to TfL's
Code of Practice (Appendix 2) and a requirement that operators do not directly
place bikes on City streets.

ofo and Mobike have been operating in the City on this basis since November
2017. To date, both ofo and Mobike have demonstrated a willingness to engage
positively with the City Corporation and to adhere to our adopted policy and TfL’s
Code of Practice.

City of London powers to regulate dockless cycle hire

6.

The Comptroller and City Solicitor has confirmed the legal advice provided in the
report of 21 May that dockless cycle hire schemes fall outside the existing
legislative framework and the City Corporation does not have powers to prevent
dockless cycle hire schemes from operating in the City (see Appendix 3 for more
details). Under current legislation, operators do not require consent or a licence
from the local authority to operate as no infrastructure is placed on the highway.
Bikes may be removed if they cause a nuisance, obstruction or danger. Dockless
cycle hire does not fall under the definition of street trading and officers are of the
view that it is doubtful that definitions of “waste” or “litter” in legislation apply.

The lack of powers to licence dockless cycle hire operators has been recognised
by Transport for London and London Councils. They have proposed introducing a
London-wide byelaw to establish a regulatory framework for dockless cycle hire.
While the details are still to be decided, the byelaw would effectively create an
offence of operating a cycle hire scheme without a licence. The City Corporation
and the boroughs would then be able to grant consent following local
assessment. It is considered that a London-wide regime is required because

Page 98



dockless cycle hire operates across borough boundaries, meaning that separate
borough by borough arrangements are unlikely to be effective.

8. Creation of a London-wide byelaw would require the City Corporation and the
boroughs to delegate their byelaw-making functions on this matter to London
Councils’ Transport and Environment Committee (TEC). At their 14 June 2018
meeting, TEC agreed in principle that a draft scheme for a London-wide byelaw
should be prepared and delegations from the City Corporation and boroughs
sought to enable the byelaw to be progressed. It is anticipated that it could take 6
— 12 months for a draft byelaw to be prepared and the delegations to the TEC to
be made. Any delegation to TEC would be the subject of a further report to
Planning and Transportation Committee.

9. Government has acknowledged that there are no specific powers relating to
dockless cycle hire schemes and has expressed a willingness to explore the
need for a national standard on dockless cycle hire (Appendix 4). However, this
does not appear to be a priority issue for the Department for Transport and any
national standard would likely be similar to TfL’s Code of Practice. Furthermore,
the government has indicated to TfL that there is no scope in the short/medium
term for legislation on this issue. The byelaw making powers outlined above are
therefore being explored in the interests of an earlier measure.

10. While not being able to prevent dockless cycle hire schemes from operating, the
City Corporation can remove bikes that are deemed to be causing an obstruction,
danger or nuisance. These powers are consistent with the City Corporation’s
statutory duty to assert and protect the rights of the public to use and enjoy the
highway, our network management duty and our duty to secure the convenient
and safe movement of traffic (including pedestrian traffic).

11.1f a bike is deemed to be causing an obstruction, danger or nuisance, the City
Corporation’s Street Environment Officers (SEO) currently manage dockless
cycle hire bikes as follows:

a. As the owner of the bikes is known, any bike causing a nuisance or
obstruction will be reported to the operator for removal within 90 minutes
of notification. After this time bikes will be removed by the City Corporation
without further notice.

b. If a bike is deemed to be causing a danger (including a danger caused by
obstructing the view) to users of the highway it will be removed without
notice (under Highways Act 1980 s149).

12.The operator is informed when a bike has been removed and is given the
opportunity to recover the bike, with operators charged a fee of £82.58 on
collection to cover the cost of removal.

Usage and operational approach
13.0ofo and Mobike are experiencing growing membership and use, both London-
wide and in the City. There are currently approximately 3000 dockless bike trips a

month to, from and within the Square Mile. It is expected that use will increase as
more boroughs choose to allow schemes to operate.

Page 99



14.Both ofo and Mobike have staff patrolling the City and neighbouring boroughs
who can respond to requests to remove bikes. These staff also reposition bikes
to move them alongside cycle stands to avoid obstructing pavements. When
necessary, bikes are also redistributed back to a host borough.

15.ofo and Mobike encourage considerate parking through in-app messaging and
advice to users. Discussions with operators have highlighted the difficulty of
penalising users for parking in an inappropriate or inconsiderate location due to
the limited accuracy of GPS systems. More accuracy can be achieved by using
Bluetooth sensors to record when bikes are left in preferred parking locations.
Operators will want certainty of ongoing permission to operate before investing in
this technology, as this requires installation of sensors in set locations and the
ongoing maintenance of these sensors. Mobike have recently introduced a £20
charge for bikes left outside their geo-fenced operations area (with a 100m buffer
to reflect GPS accuracy). The City is not covered by this charge as the existing
arrangement with Mobike means that the Square Mile is currently part of their
operational area.

16.Badly parked bikes undoubtedly bring these schemes into disrepute, regardless
of how quickly bikes are rehired or moved, but the evidence so far would suggest
that bikes are rehired by customers relatively frequently rather than being moved
by the operator themselves. In several cases where a poorly parked bike has
been reported to officers, the bike has been ridden away by a customer before
the operator has reached the location.

17.To date, requests to ofo or Mobike for bikes to be relocated have been dealt with
in a timely fashion and within the target time agreed with the City Corporation, so
that the City’s SEO or City Police have only had to remove bikes on three
occasions since November 2017.

Policy Considerations

18.Dockless cycle hire is a new phenomenon in the UK; but offers a lower-cost and
potentially more space-efficient type of cycle hire operation compared with the
Santander Cycles scheme. The lack of docking infrastructure means that bikes
are much more flexible and can be ridden directly to the hirer’s destination.

19.The ease and accessibility of dockless cycle hire for City workers, residents and
visitors gives these schemes particular appeal for short trips within the Square
Mile or central London, providing an alternative to short taxi, private hire or public
transport trips. Usage patterns of dockless cycle hire show that the dockless
bikes are well used during the day for trips within the City and central London, as
well as for commuting.

20.Good availability of affordable cycle hire is now an important part of the transport
mix for any modern city, and dockless cycle hire is likely to be a feature of cycle
hire schemes in the future. The City Corporation’s forthcoming Transport
Strategy will set out what part well-managed cycle hire can play as part of the
wider transport agenda. Concerns related to the operation of dockless cycle hire

Page 100



schemes have not been raised as a significant issue during the public
engagement on the Transport Strategy so far.

Proposals

21.1t is recommended that the current policy of working with operators is continued
until the City of London Transport Strategy is adopted early next year. The policy
will then be reviewed and, if necessary, updated to ensure it reflects both the
Transport Strategy and the City’s statutory powers and duties. This review will
form part of a wider review of policy on pavement obstructions. Public
consultation on the Transport Strategy will allow any future policy to be informed
by the views of residents, workers, visitors, businesses and other stakeholders.

22.1t is also proposed that, to reduce the potential for obstruction, the City
Corporation’s SEOs proactively apply the Street obstructions policy to dockless
cycle hire, removing any bikes that are deemed to be causing an obstruction:

¢ on footways which are narrower than two metres wide

¢ on footways identified as having a high footfall (such as transport hubs,
stations and related pedestrian routes)

e where safe pedestrian movement is interrupted (regardless of the width of
the pavement)

23.Further measures to improve the management of dockless cycle hire in the
Square Mile prior to the full policy review will include:

a. Making space in under-utilised City-owned car parks available on a
commercial basis to dockless cycle hire operators for storage of bikes to
allow more effective operation and removal of bikes from the City’s streets.

b. Working with operators to further encourage considerate parking practices,
including through in-app messaging and exploring the potential use of
penalties for inconsiderate parking.

c. Officers will continue to work with operators, SEOs and the City of London
Police to gather data on the use and management of dockless cycle hire to
inform the review of the current policy. We will ask operators to provide
regular data reports, allowing periodic updates to be made to Committee.

d. Officers will work with Transport for London and London Councils to
support the development of a London-wide byelaw to regulate dockless
cycle hire operations.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

24.The proposals support the Corporate Plan aims to contribute to a flourishing
society, particularly promoting good health and wellbeing, and to shape
outstanding environments, by enhancing the physical connectivity of the City.

25.The proposals support the draft Transport Strategy outcome to promote a relaxed

cycling experience in the City and enable a more diverse range of people to
choose to cycle.

Page 101



26.There is a reputational risk that the City Corporation may be seen as
unsupportive of innovative approaches to enable more cycling if it does not allow
people to use dockless cycle hire to travel to and around the Square Mile.

Legal and financial implications

27.Legal Implications - The City Corporation has no powers to remove bikes that are
parked on City streets unless they are causing an obstruction, nuisance or
danger to the public, and operators do not require consent or a licence from the
local authority as no infrastructure is placed on the highway. However, setting out
standards for managing the schemes is consistent with the City Corporation’s
statutory duties referred to in paragraph 10. Further details are set out in
Appendix 3.

28.1n the event of loss, injury or damage being caused by dockless hire cycles, the
person responsible would depend on the circumstances of each case. For
example, if a cycle had remained in a dangerous position for days without the
highway authority taking steps despite complaints, some liability would be likely
to rest with the highway authority. If an accident occurred a few moments after
the cycle was left in a dangerous position and the highway authority had no
reasonable opportunity to identify and remedy the danger, it is unlikely any
liability would rest with the highway authority, and therefore would be more likely
to rest with the user and/or operator. In addition, the steps proposed to ensure
the safe operation of dockless cycle hire would help demonstrate that the City is
taking reasonable measures consistent with its responsibilities.

29.Financial Implications - Accommodating a dockless cycle hire scheme has no
direct cost to the City Corporation. Costs may be incurred if the City Corporation
has to remove bikes deemed to be causing a danger, nuisance or obstruction
from the streets in default of the operator removing them. Storage costs would be
incurred in these circumstances. Instances of removals will continue to be
monitored and inform reviews of the City’s position. Costs will be sought from
operators in all instances where they are liable.

Health Implications

30. The proposals would support cycle hire facilities in the City. This will encourage
active travel within central London, and potentially shift journeys from short taxi,
private hire and public transport trips, with associated benefits to air quality and
public health.

Equality Implications
31.The proposals to improve the management of dockless cycle hire and to
encourage considerate use/parking of bikes will help mitigate adverse impacts for

vulnerable road users (e.g. visually impaired, wheelchair users). This is
consistent with the public sector equality duty.

Page 102



Conclusion

32.Dockless cycle hire operations launched in London in the latter part of 2017 and
have steadily increased their presence in inner London boroughs, including
operating in Camden, Hackney, Islington and Southwark. More boroughs are
expected to launch schemes in the coming months.

33. Given that the City Corporation’s express consent to operate dockless cycle hire
schemes in the City is not required, the continuation of the current policy is felt
appropriate pending the adoption of the Transport Strategy; albeit with additional
measures to support the considerate use, enforcement and management of
dockless cycle hire by operators. This will allow us to work collaboratively with
operators to ensure the best outcome. The City is working closely with TfL,
London Councils and other boroughs to develop a London-wide solution for
regulating dockless cycle hire as their cross-borough operations mean that
separate borough by borough arrangements are unlikely to be effective.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — City of London Dockless Cycle Hire Policy

e Appendix 2 — TfL Dockless Cycle Hire Code of Practice

e Appendix 3 — Legal implications: Advice from the Comptroller and City
Solicitor

e Appendix 4 — Government response to written question on powers to regulate
dockless cycle hire

Background Papers

Dockless Cycle Hire — Report to Planning and Transportation Committee, 3 October
2017

Bruce McVean
Department of the Built Environment

T: 020 7332 3163
E: bruce.mcvean@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 103


mailto:bruce.mcvean@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1 — City of London Dockless Cycle Hire Policy
As adopted by the Planning & Transportation Committee on 3 October 2017.

The City of London Corporation recognises the role that well-organised dockless
cycle hire schemes can play in providing low-cost public access to cycles for short
urban journeys and endorses the Dockless bike share code of practice (“the Code”).

Operators are expected to follow the requirements and recommendations of the
Code.

While the City of London is likely to be a popular destination for trips undertaken by
dockless cycle hire, the street layout and extremely high footfall in the City means
that highway in the City is an unsuitable location for dockless cycle hire operations to
be based. This means that no operator should directly place cycles on City
Corporation highway. Cycles should not be placed on any other land in the City
without the consent of the property owner. The City Corporation should be informed
in advance of any proposals to base cycles on private property within the City.

The City Corporation will engage with operators wishing to operate dockless cycle
hire schemes, and users of the schemes may leave the cycles in appropriate
locations on City streets, with these cycles then available for public hire, subject to
cycle hire operators’ compliance with the Code and the City Corporation Policy
Statement.

Cycles belonging to operators not complying with the Code and causing danger,
obstruction or nuisance will be removed by the City Corporation and operators will be
liable for costs as set out in the Code.

Operators wishing to run a dockless cycle hire scheme in the City of London should
contact the Strategic Transportation team to discuss their proposals.

Page 104



Dockless bike share code of practice

For Operators in London

September 2017

TRANSPORT
MAYOR OF LONDON Page 105 FOR LONDON

EVERY JOURNEY MATTERS




Contents

N 1 £ (0o [8 o 1o o [P PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP
P2 A [ = g o oo o = S
3. DEIINILIONS ..
O €T g ToT = | I (Yo U1 = 0 0 T=T ] £
S TR = 0T F=To [ <] 0 1 =T o | SO
6. Safety and MAINENANCE .........ccoiiieeeiiii e e e e e e e e e e e e et eaeeeeeeeeeeannnaaeas
R © ] 01T = 11 0] o S F SRR
8. Customer experience and EAUCATION..........oeiiiieiiiiiiee ettt e et e e e e e eeenan s
S B D F L = W (=T (U1 (=10 0= ] £ PTPTTT
O B I 0 1= =T 0 AV o 11 1= o | TS SURPPPPPPPRTPN
11.  ACCESSIDIIItY FEQUINEIMENTS ....euiii et e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e aeeeennnns
12, FULUre CONSIAEIALIONS ....cceiiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e eesanaa e e e e eeeeeeesnnnns 10
TRANSPORT
MAYOR OF LONDON Page 106 FOR LONDON

EVERY JOURNEY MATTERS



1.1

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

2.1.

2.2.

Introduction

Transport for London (TfL) and the Boroughs have a key role in shaping what life is like in
London, helping to realise the Mayor's vision for a 'City for All Londoners'. We are
committed to creating a fairer, greener, healthier and more prosperous city. The Mayor's
Transport Strategy sets a target for 80 per cent of all journeys to be made on foot, by bike
or using public transport by 2041. To achieve this, TfL, the Boroughs and other transport
providers must work together to make the city a place where people choose to walk and
cycle more often.

The potential to get more people cycling is huge, and dockless bikes are a way to
make cycling more accessible and will complement London’s existing public
transport network.

Alongside this, streets must be made more accessible for those who prefer to walk,
especially children and older and disabled Londoners. Safety remains our primary objective
and it is our duty to protect the rights of the public to use and enjoy the Capital’s highways
and footways. Dockless bike share schemes must work for everyone without
impacting, or causing a Danger to, other road users.

This code of practice (this Code) has been developed in collaboration with London’s
Boroughs. It outlines the requirements and recommendations that Operators are expected
to follow as part of delivering safe and effective schemes in the Capital.

This Code will be reviewed and updated regularly so it continues to reflect best
practice and the interests of Londoners.

It complements the existing legal and regulatory framework, which Operators must observe
and comply with at all times. Failure to follow this Code may be taken into account should
any Highway Authority take enforcement action (see Section 7 of this Code) or begin legal
proceedings against any Operator.

Copies of this Code are publicly available, in accordance with the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985.

Aim and scope

A key aim of this Code is to ensure well-designed, dockless bike share schemes that
complement London’s public transport network and support the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

This Code applies to all Operators and sets out the operational and safety standards that
Operators are expected to adhere to.

Page 107



3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

Definitions

For the purpose of this document the following definitions apply:
Boroughs

Boroughs mean all of the 32 London boroughs and the City of London.
Danger

Danger means risk of bodily harm or injury or damage to property.
Geographic Controls or Geo-fencing

Geographic Controls or Geo-fencing means the use of Global Positioning Systems (GPS)
or Radio Frequency Identification Device (RFID) technology to create a virtual geographic
fence. When a device moves into (or out of) the space defined by the fence, triggers are
sent and the user will receive, for example, a text or push notification.

The technology allows Operators to specify where a bike can be safely parked, or create an
exclusion zone that prevents the bike from being manually locked.

Highway Authority

Highway Authority means a body responsible for the administration of Public Roads
including TfL, Highways England and the Boroughs.

Non-participating Borough

Non-participating Borough means any Borough which is not directly associated with an
Operator that could be interpreted as not supporting dockless bike share schemes, either
explicitly or implicitly.

Nuisance

Nuisance means an act, omission, situation or practice that materially affects the
reasonable comfort and convenience of the public.

Obstruction

Obstruction means a situation arising from the deposit of a bike or bikes (whether by reason
of its or their position, their number, or otherwise) so as adversely to affect the free use of a
highway (including a footway or a carriageway), or adversely to affect the free use of any
other public or private land which is not specifically assigned for the purposes of dockless
bikes.

Operator

Operator means any Operator running or planning to run a dockless bike share scheme on
Public Roads or which may affect any premises or assets of TfL or the Boroughs.

Participating Borough

Participating Borough means a Borough that has entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) or other agreement with an Operator to support the operation of a
dockless bike share scheme in that Borough.

Public Road

Public Road means any highway or other road maintainable at public expense.

Page 108



4.1.

5.

General requirements

Any Operator wishing to run a dockless bike share scheme within the Capital should be an
accredited London Living Wage Employer. It must also:

e Comply with all applicable laws, codes of practice and standards

e Take out and maintain appropriate insurances, for itself and users of the scheme, as
well as appropriate public liability insurance

Engagement

Prior to launching a dockless bike share scheme, Operators must engage with TfL and all
other relevant Highway Authorities responsible for the Public Roads on which the scheme
is proposed to operate or whose premises may be affected by such scheme.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

Engagement with Highway Authorities includes (without limitation):

e Agreeing a detailed operations plan specifying how the scheme will comply with all of
the requirements contained in this Code, in particular the provision and application of:

— Strict Geographic Controls
— Parking infrastructure and control

e Agreeing detailed plans outlining where and when the Operator plans to introduce a
scheme, the number of cycles and the extent to which the Operator expects the
volume of bikes to grow and be managed

e Providing evidence the Operator has engaged with Highway Authorities likely to be
affected by the scheme in the Participating Borough (eg neighbouring Boroughs)

The Operator must also agree to any additional terms required by the relevant Highway
Authorities to supplement this Code.

As well as adhering to this Code, it is recommended that Operators establish an
appropriate form of agreement with Participating Borough(s). It must be noted, however,
that any such agreement is without prejudice to the requirement for Operators to comply
with all applicable laws including those governing interference with free passage on Public
Roads.

Dockless bike share schemes should be introduced on a trial basis. Parameters should be
set with Participating Boroughs specifying, as a minimum, the number of bikes to be
deployed, when the trial will take place, how long it will last and reporting on the
performance and impact of the trial scheme.

Operators must agree to cease operations and remove all bicycles if instructed to do so by
a relevant Highway Authority.

Operators should also consider the benefits of wider engagement, at proposal stage and
during operation, with the public, private landowners, and other stakeholders likely to be
impacted by the scheme. This should include (without limitation):

e Communicating the general nature of the scheme including approval to operate from
the relevant Borough(s)

e Explaining the scope, for instance the number of bicycles involved and the
geographical area in which they may be used

Page 109



6.

e Providing reassurance and addressing any concerns that the public and local
stakeholders may have. Particular consideration should be given to vulnerable road
users such as pedestrians, disabled people and those who are visually or hearing
impaired

Safety and maintenance

The safety of Londoners is a primary concern and increases in the number of people
cycling must be achieved safely, minimising Danger to the public. Without limitation,
Operators must meet the standards set out below.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

Operators must achieve and maintain ISO 4210:2014 standards for bicycles in the UK and
it is always their responsibility to ensure this. They must have robust maintenance and
servicing regimes in place so bicycles continue to meet applicable laws and standards. As a
minimum, bicycles should be given a full service annually, with formal checks and repairs
taking place regularly throughout the year.

It is, at the time of publication, a legal requirement to:

e Provide hand-operated brakes arranged left-hand rear and right-hand front

e Provide front and back lights on the bike so it can operate safely in low light conditions
— BS EN ISO 4210:1-9 The Pedal Bicycles (Safety) Regulations 2010 and Road
Vehicle Lighting Regulations 1989

e Provide a rear red reflector and amber/yellow reflectors on the front and rear of each
pedal

e Make sure all bicycles have an individually identifiable asset number

This is not a list of all legal requirements. It is the Operators’ responsibility to make sure
they comply with all applicable laws and standards for bicycles in the UK.

Operators must also comply with all applicable health and safety legislation. This includes
(without limitation) setting out how they will report the number of staff and customers killed
or seriously injured (if any) while working for, or using, the scheme.

They must have operational processes in place to enable customers and members of the
public to easily report unsafe or damaged bicycles (see Section 8 (Customer experience
and education)). It is the responsibility of the Operator to make sure these bicycles are no
longer available for hire, and are recovered within the following service response times:

e Where a bicycle is considered to be causing a Danger or Obstruction, the bicycle
should be removed within two hours, or within the Highway Authority’s emergency
response time, whichever is the quickest. If bicycles are causing an immediate Danger,
the relevant Highway Authority may remove them without prior notice. The Operator
will be liable for all associated costs

e Where a bicycle is reported to be causing a Nuisance, a maximum response time
of 24 hours will be required

Operators must make sure the bicycles are cleaned frequently and within suitable
timeframes as agreed with the relevant Highway Authorities. This will include, but is not
limited to, removing offensive graffiti and biohazardous material proactively or when
directed by the Highway Authorities.

Page 110



6.5.

6.6.

7.

TfL encourages Operators to achieve the Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme (FORS)
bronze accreditation to demonstrate their business is being run safely, efficiently and in an
environmentally sound manner. FORS aims to ensure:

e Safer operations — Operators meet accreditation standards and report, investigate
and analyse incidents

e  Safer drivers — approved training is available to drivers to increase their awareness of
vulnerable road users’ safety

e Safer vehicles — those over 3.5 tonnes are fitted with specified safety equipment

The minimum age recommended for a registered user of any scheme will be 18. If
accompanied by an adult, users must be at least 14-years-old. This will be explained both
in the user terms and conditions and on the bicycle.

Operations

Dockless bike share schemes must be operated so as not to cause disruption. The deposit
or use of shared dockless bikes (individually or collectively) must not cause Nuisance or
Obstruction, and must not restrict or affect the use or enjoyment of property on Public
Roads, the premises of any Highway Authority, or private land. The Highways Act 1980 and
relevant Highway Authority byelaws provide powers to remove unlawfully deposited bicycles. A
Highway Authority may consider giving a warning or taking enforcement action such as issuing
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNSs) or prosecuting, where this is required. Operators will be treated as
responsible for the use (including the deposit) of any bike they own or manage.

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

Where an Obstruction occurs, the bike or bikes involved must be moved to a compliant
parking space within the timescales set out in Section 6.3. Failure to comply may result in
removal, a formal warning, FPN or prosecution.

Where bikes have been removed either by a Highway Authority or emergency services, the
Operator will be liable to pay all associated reasonable costs.

Any specific infrastructure requirements that are considered necessary to support the
proposed scheme, for instance demarcation, additional parking areas and Sheffield bike
stands, will be agreed with the relevant Highway Authorities.

Operators must liaise with TfL, the relevant Borough(s) and organisations such as the
Royal Parks and Network Rail, to establish guidelines for where bikes can and cannot be
parked. This will include general parking rules and details of specific areas where parking is
prohibited at all or certain times.

Operators must make that an Obstruction does not arise because of the deposit of bikes,
and that bikes are not deposited in predesignated no-go areas such as around fire escapes
(eg through Geo-fencing).

Operators must also be able to monitor and report the location of all their bikes in real time.
It is recommended that they can identify any bikes that have fallen over, and so pose a
safety risk, and therefore are liable to be removed.

Operators must have the capability to manage the removal and redistribution of
bicycles including when required by a Highway Authority or the Police and (without
limitation):

Page 111



7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

8.1.

8.2.

e  When clustering of bikes occurs, for example around transport interchanges during
peak times and at large stadia and other important venues

e If there has been a major incident and the emergency services have requested the
immediate removal of all bikes

e  When cycle journeys have ended in a Non-participating Borough

e In preparation for planned events as instructed by Highway Authorities or emergency
services

e If requested to cease all operations

Service level agreements addressing these situations must be agreed with the relevant
Highway Authorities.

The Operator must ensure the safe and lawful loading and unloading of bicycles by properly
trained individuals with suitable training records kept and available for inspection.
Obstruction must be avoided.

Operators’ staff must be properly trained as to where bikes may and may not be deployed
with suitable training records kept and available for inspection.

Operators must provide the Highway Authorities with a telephone number and details of a
named person or persons who can be contacted directly and immediately, at any time of
day, on any day, and who will have the authority and resources available to them in order to
rectify any foreseeable problems or take any other appropriate action.

Customer experience and education

Operators must offer 24-hour communication channels. This includes a telephone number
that is clearly advertised on their website, mobile apps and bicycles.

Customer enquiries made during business hours should go direct to the Operator. An after-
hours phone menu should be available for queries outside business hours, where not direct
to the Operator.

The Operator must make sure the terms and conditions of use for their scheme/s are easily
available to customers, via their website and mobile apps. They must:

e Require all customers to accept their scheme’s terms and conditions that includes
clear guidelines on where the scheme operates and where bicycles can and cannot be
parked

e Highlight important components of their terms and conditions including parking
restrictions, incentives for good behaviour and penalties for non-compliance

e Provide general advice on their mobile app as part of the sign-up process that
promotes safe and lawful bicycle use in London. This should include, but is not limited
to, guidance on:

Staying back from heavy goods vehicles

Not cycling on pavements

Staying away from parked cars

Stopping at red lights

Staying central on narrow roads

Page 112



8.3.

8.4.

9.

— Hand signals for safe turning

e Provide a ‘frequently asked question’ page on their website and mobile app

All Operators’ deposit and payments policy must be in accordance with the Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standard. It should be transparent, reasonable and clearly
communicated to the customer when they sign up to the scheme and when they hire a bike.

Operators must have a complaints handling procedure. It must be well publicised and
clearly communicated on their website and mobile app. It must also:

e Include contact details, and the process, for making a complaint

e State the timeframes in which the Operator will endeavour to resolve the complaint,
including when they are likely to notify the complainant about its progress or resolution

e Be accessible so that disabled customers can lodge and progress a complaint

Data requirements

The Mayor’'s commitment to increasing safe cycling in London requires TfL and the Boroughs to
understand patterns of cycle demand and use. Dockless bike sharing provides an opportunity to
do this more accurately, which will better inform the Mayor’s cycling strategy for London.

9.1.
9.2.

9.3.

10.

Operators must share anonymised trip data with the relevant Highway Authority to help
enhance the cycling network.

They must also share data with the police and other law enforcement agencies if bicycles
are suspected of being used for illegal or antisocial purposes.

In accordance with data protection legislation, all personal data must be processed lawfully.
Operators must make sure appropriate security measures are taken against unauthorised
access to, or alteration, disclosure, accidental loss or destruction of, personal data.

The environment

TfL and the Boroughs are determined to reduce the impact of their transport operations on the
environment. Measures in the Mayor's clean air strategy will target the most polluting vehicles in

London.

10.1. When redistributing bikes, Operators should consider the environmental impact of any
vehicles used. Compliance with the FORS bronze accreditation will contribute to this.

10.2. Itis recommended that Operators comply with ISO 14001:2015 to minimise negative
impacts on the environment.

10.3. Recognising that bicycles have a limited useful life, Operators must share their policy for
reusing and recycling their assets with TfL and the relevant Boroughs.

11. Accessibility requirements

TfL and the Boroughs continue to improve the Capital’s urban realm, decluttering streets and
making public spaces more pleasant and easier for disabled people to use.

Page 113



11.1. Operators should recognise TfL’s equality and inclusion policy and must be committed to
improving transport in London by making it more accessible, safe and reliable.

12. Future considerations

TfL, in partnership with the Boroughs, remains open to innovative new services that could help
achieve the Mayor’s goals for cycling, provided they are safe and effectively managed.

The introduction of dockless bike sharing will be closely monitored as appropriate governance and
regulatory controls are explored to make sure it works for everyone in the Capital.

Page 114



Appendix 3 — Legal implications: Advice from the Comptroller and City
Solicitor

Statutory duties

The City Corporation has a duty under s.130 of the HA 1980 to assert and protect
the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of any highway for which they are
the highway authority.

It also has a network management duty under s.16 of the Traffic Management Act
2004. This requires it to manage its road network with a view to achieving, so far as
may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other obligations, policies and
objectives, the following objectives:

a. securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority's road network;
and

b. facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which
another authority is the traffic authority.

Under section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 local authorities are
under a duty to exercise functions conferred on them under that Act so far as
practicable, having regard to matters specified in subsection (2), to secure the
expeditious, safe and convenient movement of traffic (including pedestrians).

The City Corporation is also subject to the public sector equality duty under section
149 of the Equalities Act 2010. This means that in the exercise of its functions it must
have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. This
includes removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their
protected characteristics (such as visual or mobility disabilities).

An unmanaged proliferation of bikes on the highway arising from dockless bike hire
schemes may compromise compliance with the above statutory duties.

Statutory powers to deal with bikes on highway

Dockless cycle hire schemes which do not necessitate any infrastructure being
placed on the highway fall outside the existing legislative framework and do not need
the City Corporation’s consent to operate in the City. However, there are some
existing statutory powers available where bikes are left so as to cause an
obstruction, nuisance or danger.

1. Section 137 HA 1980 — If a person, without lawful authority or excuse, in any
way wilfully obstructs the free passage along a highway he is guilty of an
offence and liable to a fine not exceeding Level 3 on the standard scale
(currently up to £1000.00.)

2. Section 148(c) HA 1980- if, without lawful authority or excuse a person
deposits anything whatsoever on a highway to the interruption of any user of

Page 115



the highway he is guilty of an offence and liable to a fine not exceeding Level
3 on the standard scale.

3. Section 149 HA 1980 - if anything is so deposited on a highway as to
constitute a nuisance, the highway authority for the highway may by notice
require the person who deposited there to remove it forthwith. In the event of
non-compliance, a court order may be obtained authorising the removal and
disposal of the offending item. If the highway authority has reasonable
grounds for considering the item constitutes a danger (including a danger
caused by obstructing the view) to users of the highway and ought to be
removed without the delay of seeking a court order it can remove the item
forthwith and, ultimately, seek a court order for its disposal.

Street trading and ‘waste’

Consideration has been given to whether the provision of dockless cycles for hire is
caught by local legislation which makes it unlawful for any person to engage in
unauthorised street trading in the City. “Street trading” is defined in the City of
London (Various Powers) Act 1987 to mean the selling or exposing or offering for
sale of any article or thing in a street. However, dockless cycle hire schemes involve
bikes being available on the highway (or on private land with the consent of the
owner) for temporary hire by members of the public, with payment being made via an
App, and no person in the street engaged in the hiring out of the bikes. As the 1987
Act prohibits a person from selling etc. items in the street, not the temporary hiring of
bikes in the way proposed which is more in the nature of a service (and not dissimilar
to the existing Santander cycle hire scheme except that there are no docking
stations), the activity would not amount to unauthorised street trading.

Consideration has been given to whether definitions of “waste” or “litter” in legislation
apply. It is considered that these terms are not intended to cover bicycles left
temporarily on the highway and which are in use for the benefit of the operators and
their customers and officers are not aware of any decisions on this point. It is not
considered that this adds significantly to the City’s statutory powers to deal with
bikes on the highway.

Regulation by making byelaws

Government guidance states that byelaws are considered measures of last resort
after a local council has tried to address the local issue the byelaw applies to through
other means. A byelaw cannot be made where alternative legislative measures
already exist that could be used to address the problem. Byelaws should always be
proportionate and reasonable.

It follows that there is a risk that the case for making a byelaw to regulate dockless
bike hire could be undermined if all bikes on City streets were to be classed as
obstructions and removed under existing powers. This would not prevent the
application of the Street Obstructions Policy as proposed.

Page 116



In relation to the activities of other local authorities in this area, it is understood by
City officers that action is proposed to be pursued through a proposed London-wide
byelaw.

TfL and London Councils have proposed establishing a regulatory framework for
dockless bike hire schemes by way of a London-wide byelaw as the Boroughs have
power to make byelaws for good rule and government under section 235 of the Local
Government Act 1972. This would necessitate each authority delegating their
byelaw-making powers to London Councils’ TEC. The byelaw would then be made
by way of the new simplified procedure introduced by Regulations which replaced
the requirement for Government confirmation of the byelaw.

(However, the City Corporation has a different power to make byelaws for good rule
and government contained in the City of London (Various Powers) Act 1961 to which
the new simplified procedure does not apply. The City Corporation’s participation in
London-wide byelaw arrangements may therefore require a separate byelaw (which
would need to be confirmed by the relevant Secretary of State) to interface with the
TEC byelaw as part of the London-wide controls).

Liabilities

In the event of loss, injury or damage being caused by the cycles, the person
responsible would depend on the circumstances of each case. For example, if a
cycle had remained in a dangerous position for days without the highway authority
taking steps despite complaints, some liability would be likely to rest with the
highway authority. If an accident occurred a few moments after the cycle was left in a
dangerous position and the highway authority had no reasonable opportunity to
identify and remedy the danger, it is unlikely any liability would rest with the highway
authority, and therefore would be more likely to rest with the user and/or operator. In
addition, the steps proposed to secure the co-operation of operators in ensuring safe
practises would help demonstrate that the City is taking reasonable measures
consistent with its responsibilities.

Page 117



Appendix 4 — Government response to written question on powers to regulate
dockless cycle hire

Asked by Stephen Morgan, MP for Portsmouth South:

To ask the Secretary of State for Transport, what powers local authorities in England
have to regulate bike share schemes within their boundaries.

Answered by Jesse Norman, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for the
Department for Transport (22 November 2017):

There are no specific powers relating to bike-share schemes, however shared
bicycles are subject to the same legal requirements and byelaws as other bicycles,
and local authorities have powers to act if they are causing an obstruction or
nuisance. The Department is discussing with various stakeholders the possible need
for an agreed consistent national standard for bike share schemes to help ensure
that they are introduced and managed appropriately.

Page 118



Agenda Iltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding References
	5 Beech Street: Transport and Public Realm Improvements
	Beech Street G3 Issues Report (sept18) - FINAL DRAFT
	Appendix 1 - Traffic Impact Areas
	Appendix 2 - Beech Street traffic closure analysisv2
	Appendix 3 - Beech Street southside visualisations
	Appendix 4 - Expenditure to date table
	Appendix 5 - Total Additional funds to reach G4-
	Finance Table


	6 Tudor Street/New Bridge Street - Update Report
	7 Bank on Safety: Further Detail on the Additional Funds Sought
	BOS detail on additional funds Sep 18 FV

	8 Adoption of the City Lighting Strategy
	Appendix 1 - City lighting Strategy Consulation report LR
	Structure Bookmarks
	Article


	Appendix 2 - City Lighting Strategy amendments table

	9 Dockless Cycle Hire Review
	Dockless Cycle Hire Report SW PT Sept18 Appendix 2
	Dockless bike share code of practice
	For Operators in London
	September 2017
	Contents
	1.   Introduction
	2.  Aim and scope
	3.   Definitions
	4.   General requirements
	5.  Engagement
	6.  Safety and maintenance
	7.  Operations
	8.  Customer experience and education
	9.  Data requirements
	10. The environment
	11. Accessibility requirements
	12. Future considerations


	Dockless Cycle Hire Report Appendices 3-5

	13 Non-public minutes
	14 Bank On Safety Unattended Enforcement Camera Contract Extension
	15 Non-Public Appendix - Tudor Street/New Bridge Street



